Agenda Item #:

4F-2

#### PALM BEACH COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

#### AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: October 2, 2012 Consent Regular [] [X][] Ordinance Public Hearing Department: **Risk Management** Submitted By: **Risk Management Submitted For: Group Insurance** \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_

#### I. EXECUTIVE BRIEF

# Motion and Title: Staff recommends motion to approve:

- A) First annual option to renew the Administrative Services Only Agreement (R2011 1667) dated October 31, 2011, with CIGNA Health and Life Insurance Company (CHLIC) for claims administration services for the County's self-funded HMO and POS health insurance plans for the period January 1, 2013 through December 31,2013; and
- B) CHLIC's proposed administrative fees, access fees and specific stop loss premiums for plan year 2013; and
- C) The Actuarial rates per coverage tier for plan year 2013.

**Summary:** Staff recommends Board approval of the first annual option to renew the Administrative Services Only Agreement with CHLIC for the period January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 on behalf of the employees of the Board, Supervisor of Elections, and Palm Tran, Inc. (collectively participating in the plan through the provisions of Interlocal Agreement R2002 2287). The total projected health plan and administrative expense for plan year 2013 is \$64,385,421, representing a reduction of \$1,337,002 over the projected 2012 expense at the same time last year. This is due to the plan's favorable claims experience and a reduction in employee/dependent enrollment of approximately 100. Staff recommends that employee contributions and cost-sharing remain unchanged for plan year 2013. Sufficient funds have been budgeted to fund the program. Countywide (TKF)

Background and Policy Issues: (Continued on Page 3).

#### Attachments:

- 1) Letter from CIGNA confirming administrative fees, access fees, and stop loss insurance premiums for plan year 2012.
- Letter and attachment from Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. illustrating plan year 2013 cost projections and recommended actuarial rates for each plan and associated tier of coverage.

Vancy Recommended by: Department Director Approved By: Assistant County Administrator

# II. FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

# A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact

Fiscal Years	<u>2013</u>	<u>2014</u>	<u>2015</u>	<u>2016</u>	<u>2017</u>
Capital Expenditures					
Operating Costs External Revenues Program Income (County) In-Kind Match (County)	1,819,292				
Net Fiscal Impact	1,819,292				
# ADDITIONAL FTE POSITIONS (Cumulative)	0	0_	0	0	0
Is Item Included In Curre	ent Budget?	Yes <u>X</u>	No		
Budget Account Exp No Rev No			00_Unit <u>7300</u> Unit		
<b>B. Recommended Source</b> Employee Health Insuran Est. Adm/Excess Ins. Fee Est. Employees Est. Total Adm/Excess Ins	ce Fund - 5012 es (\$44.32 per l	2 month *12)	Fiscal Impact: \$531.84 4,561 \$2,425,722		
Departmental Fiscal Rev	/iew:				
	III. <u>REVI</u>		<u>ITS</u>		
A. OFMB Fiscal and/or	Contract Dev.	and Control	Comments:		
OFMB	al 11 has		Ang J- Contract Adr	ninistration	112112
B. Legal Sufficiency Assistant County	× 9/	, 4/12			

C. Other Department Review:

**Department Director** 

This summary is not to be used as a basis for payment.

**Background and Policy Issues:** The County has self-insured its health insurance plans since 2003. Annual claims experience has been consistent with, or in some years, more favorable than the numbers projected by the plan's actuary since the County became self-insured, with the exception of plan years 2006 and 2010 when actual experience exceeded the actuary's projection. Plan years 2011 and 2012 have enjoyed consistent favorable experience resulting from a number of factors, including cost-reducing plan changes that took effect in January of 2011, a reduction in plan enrollment, and a positive impact in part due to increased education and activities focused on employee wellness.

Staff recommends the specific excess insurance cap (stop loss insurance) remain at \$550,000 for any one claimant in the current plan year. This coverage protects the County against catastrophic losses.

Beginning January 1, 2012, CHLIC provided one full time wellness coordinator to serve the County in a dedicated onsite role and it increased its annual funding assistance for the wellness program to \$50,000. This will continue for plan year 2013. These wellness program enhancements have allowed a number of new activities to take place in plan year 2012, resulting in the following notable accomplishments to date:

As of this date:

- 21 onsite health screenings have been completed around the County
- 893 employees have participated in the screenings
- 683 employees have completed their health risk assessment (HRA) online
- Paid incentives for the voluntary completion of the HRA have totaled \$17,075 to date
- 16 Brown bag lunches including cooking demonstrations and physical/fiscal wellness topics have been presented to full class rooms

The first-quarter focus of the program offered an 8 week physical fitness challenge ("Ain't No Mountain High Enough"), in which participants were given pedometers and encouraged to track their daily steps and other exercise activities. The results of the physical fitness challenge were as follows:

- 1,535 employees signed up to participate in the challenge
- In total, the participants logged exercise equivalent to walking over 240,000 miles
- 101 employees participated in two "walk with Bob" events at the Government and Vista Centers
- 123 employees participated in an 8-week after work Yoga class held at the Therapeutic Complex near John Prince Park
- 168 employees participated in an 8-week after work Zumba class held at the Westgate Recreation Center

Early planning for 2013 includes the addition of a 5K run/walk at Okeeheelee Park on January 12, 2013. The event will also feature health screenings for participating employees and their eligible dependents who sign up for the race. We recommend the continuation of the \$25 incentive for voluntary completion of the online HRA for plan year 2013 in order to continue to reach 100% participation for employees.



September 4, 2012

Nancy Bolton Director, Risk Management Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners 100 Australian Avenue, Suite 200 West Palm Beach, FL 33406 1571 Sawgrass Corp Pkwy Suite 140 Sunrise, Florida 33323 Tel 954-514-6877 dina.dangelo@cigna.com

Dear Nancy,

This letter is to confirm the renewal rates for the period January 1st, 2013 – December 31st, 2013.

Administrative Fee

Network Network Point of Service \$16.12 per employee per month\$16.12 per employee per month

Access Fee (inclusive of Disease Management fee)

Network Network POS \$17.65 per employee per month\$17.65 per employee per month

Specific Stop Loss @ \$550,000

Network Network Point of Service

\$10.40 per employee per month \$10.40 per employee per month

\$.15 per employee per month

HIPAA

Sincerely,

Dina D'Angelo

Dina D'Angelo Sr. Client Manager

"Cigna" is a registered service mark, and "Cigna Dental" and the "Tree of Life" logo are service marks, of Cigna Intellectual Property, Inc., licensed for use by Cigna Corporation and its operating subsidiaries. All products and services are provided by or through such operating subsidiaries and not by Cigna Corporation. Such operating subsidiaries include Connecticut General Life Insurance Company, Cigna Health and Life Insurance Company, Cigna HealthCare of Connecticut, Inc., and Cigna Dental Health, Inc. and its subsidiaries. Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

A Subsidiary of Arthur J. Gallagher & Co.

September 5, 2012

Ms. Nancy Bolton Director, Risk Management Palm Beach County 100 Australian Ave., Ste 200 West Palm Beach, FL 33406

Re: 2013 Health Plan Projections

Dear Nancy:

I have reviewed the County's claim experience under your health plan through July 2012. I project the total 2013 expense, based on an average enrollment of 4,561 employees (which is the current enrollment) and the final fixed costs as negotiated with CIGNA, to be as follows:

Expected Claims	\$61,959,699
ASO/Access Fees	\$1,856,509
Reinsurance Premiums	\$569,213
Total Projected 2013 Expense	\$64,385,421

The projected expense for 2013 is actually lower than the projected 2012 expense was at this time last year. 2012 experience has been very favorable, as the rolling 12-month per capita claim cost as of July 31, 2012 is lower than it was a year ago. As a result, we now project an operating gain of \$5.8 million for 2012. In addition to lower than expected per capita claim costs, the enrollment has also dropped by approximately 100, and that has also contributed to the lower expense projection for 2013.

Assuming that the PPO is eliminated and the 12 current PPO enrollees all move to the POS, the 2012 funding rates generate revenue of approximately \$120,000 less than the projected 2013 expense. This is a projected shortfall of 0.2%, so I do not believe that any rate increase is necessary for 2013. Provided experience is in line with our expectations, this will keep the plan's Fund Balance at its current level, and that level satisfies the Office of Insurance Regulation's (OIR) safe harbor threshold.

For your reference, I have attached a copy of the 2012 and recommended 2013 funding rates, showing the annualized funding produced for both years. Since we are not recommending any increase, the 2013 rates are the same as the 2012 rates. If the County elects to transfer assets out of the health plan to bring the Fund Balance down to the level of the OIR safe harbor threshold, it is important that the County fund the full expected cost of the plan for 2013 in order to prevent the Fund Balance from falling below the OIR safe harbor threshold.

One Boca Place 2255 Glades Road, Suite 400E Boca Raton, FL 33431 561,995.6706 Fax 561.995.6708 www.ajg.com



Anticipated pharmacy rebates and investment income allocated to the fund are expected to add close to \$1 million to the fund in 2013 and that will provide a margin to protect against higher than expected claims without having the plan's Fund Balance fall below the OIR safe harbor.

Overall, it is my opinion that the plan is in a strong financial position and will remain so through 2013 under the recommended rating action. Please let me know if you have any questions about this or need any additional information.

Sincerely, Glen R. Volk, FSA, MAAA

Consulting Actuary

cc: Jeff Angello

Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners	
2013 Funding Illustrations Based on Breakeven Funding With No Changes to Employee Rates	

		20	12 Monthly	FL	Inding Rate	s			20	013 Monthly	Fi	unding Rate	s		
Plan	Tier	Enrollees		Total		County		Employee	Enrollees		Total		County	_	Employee
НМО	EE	1,926	\$	654.93	\$	629.93	\$	25.00	1,926	\$	654.93	\$		\$	25.00
	EE + 1	1,049	\$	1,358.79	\$	1,193.71	\$	165.08	1,049	\$	1,358.79	Ś		\$	165.08
	Family	1,234	\$	1,861.76	\$	1,582.89	\$	278.87	1,234	Ś	1,861.76	Ś		\$	278.87
	Subtotal	4,209	\$ !	59,810,133	\$	53,024,799	\$ 1	6,785,334	4,209	Ś	59,810,133	\$	53,024,799	\$ 6	6,785,334
												<u> </u>			, <u>,.</u>
POS	EE	219	\$	726.46	\$	671.46	\$	55.00	229	\$	726.46	\$	671.46	\$	55.00
	EE + 1	80	\$	1,483.93	\$	1,214.56	\$	269.37	82	\$	1,483.93	Ŝ	1,214.56	\$	269.37
	Family	41	\$	2,032.69	\$	1,621.76	\$	410.93	41	\$	2,032.69	\$	1,621.76	Ŝ	410.93
	Subtotal	340	\$	4,333,793	\$	3,728,480	\$	605,313	352	\$	4,456,583	\$	3,838,205	\$	618,378
PPO	EE	10	\$	1,833.04	\$	1,533.04	\$	300.00	-		-		-		_
	EE + 1	2	\$	4,136.26	\$	2,922.26	\$	1,214.00	-		-		-		-
	Family	-	\$	5,801.05	\$	3,803.05	\$	1,998.00	-		-		-		-
	Subtotal	12	\$	319,235	\$	254,099	\$	65,136		\$	-	\$		\$	
								······································						<b>.</b>	
<u>Fotal All Pla</u>	ins	4,561	\$ E	64,463,161	\$ !	57,007,378	\$7	,455,783	4,561	\$ (	64,266,715	\$	56,863,004	\$7	,403,712
										<u> </u>		•		<u> </u>	<u> </u>
Annual 201	3 Increase in \$									\$	(196,446)	\$	(144,374)	\$	(52,071)

4

#### **Based on Current Total Enrollment**

2013 renewal funding rates (5).xlsx

# R2011 1667 OCT 182011

# Administrative Services Only Agreement

# By and Between

# Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners "Employer"

And

# CIGNA Health and Life Insurance Company "CHLIC"

## Effective Date: January 1, 2012

#### TO THE EXTENT ALLOWED BY FLORIDA LAWS, THIS AGREEMENT AND ITS TERMS ARE PROPRIETARY AND CANNOT BE DISCLOSED WITHOUT THE PERMISSION OF EACH OF THE PARTIES

RISK MGMT. Received OCT **91** 2011 DEPT.

## Table of Contents

Definitions	3
Section 1. Term and Termination of Agreement	4
Section 2. Claim Administration and Additional Services	5
Section 3. Funding and Payment of Claims	
Section 4. Charges	
Section 5. Enrollment and Determination of Eligibility	
Section 6. Claim Audit and Confidentiality	
Section 7. Plan Benefit Liability	8
Section 8 Modification of Plan and Administrative Duties and Charges	9
Section 9. Modification of Agreement	
Section 10. Laws Governing Contract	
Section 11 Information in CHLICs Processing Systems	10
Section 12 Resolution of Disputes	
Section 13. Third Party Beneficiaries	
Section 14 Waviers	
Section 15. Headings	11
Section 16. Severability	11
Section 17. Force Majeure	11
Section 18. Assignment and Subcontracting	11
Section 19. Notices	11
Section 20. Identifying Information and Internet Usage	
Section 21 Nondiscrimination	12
Section 22 Certification	12
Section 23 Small Business Enterprise	13
Section 24 Request for Proposal	13
Signatures	14
Schedule of Financial Charges	15
Exhibit 1 Small Business Enterprise Subcontractors	
Exhibit A – Plan Document.	35
Exhibit B – Services	36
Exhibit C Claim Audit Agreement (Sample)	47
Exhibit D – Privacy Addendum	
Exhibit E Conditional Claim/Subrogation Recovery Services	57
Exhibit F California Transfer Addendum to ASO Agreement	59
Exhibit G – Request for Proposal	

÷

THIS AGREEMENT, effective January 1, 2012 (the "Effective Date") is by and between Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners ("Employer") and CIGNA Health and Life Insurance Company ("CHLIC"). This Agreement replaces any and all prior agreements between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.

#### **RECITALS:**

WHEREAS, Employer, as Plan sponsor, has adopted the benefit described in Exhibit A, as may be amended, ("Plan") for certain of its employees/members and their eligible dependents (collectively "Members"); and

WHEREAS, the employees of the Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners, Palm Tran, Inc. and the Supervisor of Elections participate in the Plan under the provisions of Interlocal Agreement #2002 2287 as amended; and

WHEREAS, Employer has requested CHLIC to furnish certain administration services in connection with the Plan 3212040

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, it is hereby agreed as follows:

#### **Definitions**

<u>Applicable Law</u> – means the state, federal and international laws and regulations that apply. Applicable Law includes but is not limited to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended and the rules and regulations thereunder ("ERISA"), the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended and the rules and regulations thereunder ("HIPAA"), the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act ("FCPA") and any other anti-bribery or anti-corruption laws in the countries where the Parties conduct business.

Agreement – this entire document including the Schedule of Financial Charges and all Exhibits.

**Bank Account** – a benefit plan account with a bank designated by CHLIC; established and maintained by Employer in its or a nominee's name.

ERISA – the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended and related regulations.

Extra-Contractual Benefits – Payments which Employer has instructed CHLIC to make for health care services and/or products that CHLIC has determined are not covered under the Plan

Member – a person eligible for and enrolled in the Plan as an employee or dependent.

<u>Participant/Participating Members</u> – Member(s) who is (are) participating in a specific program and/or product available to Members under the Plan.

<u>Participating Providers</u> – providers of health care services and/or products, who/which contract directly or indirectly with CHLIC to provide services and/or products to Members.

<u>Plan Benefits</u> – Amounts payable for covered health care services and products under the terms of the Plan.

<u>**Party/Parties**</u> – refers to Employer and CHLIC, each a "Party" and collectively, the "Parties".

Plan Year – the twelve (12) month period, beginning on the Effective Date and, thereafter, each subsequent

10/05/2011

twelve (12) month period.

<u>Run-Out Claims</u> – claims for Plan Benefits relating to health care services and products that are incurred prior to termination of this Agreement; termination of a Plan benefit option or eligible Members, as applicable. <u>Section 1. Term and Termination of Agreement</u>

The initial term of this Agreement shall be the twelve (12) months commencing on the Effective Date hereof; thereafter, this Agreement, (subject to CHLIC's right to revise charges as provided in Section 8.a.), shall automatically renew for successive terms of twelve (12) months unless, at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the then current term the Employer gives written notice that it will not renew the Agreement, or unless otherwise terminated as provided.

- a. This Agreement shall terminate upon the earliest of the following dates:
  - i. The end of the term in which delivery of written notice of non-renewal.
  - ii. The effective date of any state's or other jurisdiction's action which prohibits activities of the parties under this Agreement;
  - (a) At the option of CHLIC, two (2) business days from the time Employer fails to respond to a request (from either CHLIC or Citibank) to deposit funds necessary to maintain the Bank Account in a sufficient amount pursuant to Section 3.a. CHLIC reserves the right to suspend the payment of claims during any period of insufficient funds in Bank Account;
    - (b) At the option of CHLIC, fifteen (15) days from the date upon which the Employer fails to pay the administration charge as provided in Section 4.
    - (c) CHLIC shall immediately communicate to the Employer, in writing, its election of this option (to terminate)
  - iv. At the option of either party, on the date specified in a written notice to the other of its intention to terminate, said notice to be given by Employer at least sixty (60) days prior to the specified date; or
  - v. Any other date mutually agreeable to the Employer and CHLIC.
  - vi. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all provisions in this Agreement reasonably related to CHLIC's administration of the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit (as such term is defined in the Schedule of Financial Charges) (the "Pharmacy Benefit Provisions"), shall continue in effect for no less than thirty-six (36) months commencing on the Effective Date, except that, if any of the following dates occurs, the Pharmacy Benefit Provisions will cease being in effect as of such date:
    - (a) The effective date of any Applicable Law or governmental action which prohibits performance of the activities in connection with the Pharmacy Benefit required by this Agreement;
    - (b) The date upon which Employer fails to fund the Bank Account as required by this Agreement for claims under the Pharmacy Benefit or fails to pay CHLIC any charges in connection with the Pharmacy Benefit identified in this Agreement when due, provided CHLIC notifies Employer of its election to terminate the Pharmacy Benefit Provisions; or
    - (c) The date that is sixty (60) days after notice by one Party ("non-defaulting party") of the material breach by the other Party (the "defaulting party") of a material obligation of the defaulting party related to the Pharmacy Benefit (other than failure to fund the Bank

10/05/2011

Account or failure to pay any charges when due pursuant to Section 1.vi.b above) that is not cured to the reasonable satisfaction of the non-defaulting party within a reasonable time following the initial notice of breach.

(d) Should Employer terminate the administration of the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit prior to the end of thirty-six months from the Effective Date, CHLIC may, at its option, adjust the medical administration charges

During such thirty-six (36) month period (or shorter period, as applicable under (a), (b) or (c)above), CHLIC will continue to be the exclusive provider of Pharmacy Benefit administration services for the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit.

#### Section 2. Claim Administration and Additional Services

- a. While this Agreement is in effect, CHLIC shall, consistent with, the claim administration policies and procedures then applicable to its own health care insurance business; (i) receive and review claims for Plan Benefits; (ii) determine the Plan Benefits, if any, payable for such claims; (iii) disburse payments of Plan Benefits to claimants; and (iv) provide in the manner and within the time limits required by Applicable Law, notification to claimants of (a) the coverage determination or (b) any anticipated delay in making a coverage determination beyond the time required by Applicable Law.
- b. Following (i) termination of this Agreement, except pursuant to Section 1.a (iii); (ii) termination of Plan benefit option or (iii) termination of eligible\_Members, if the required fees have been paid in full, CHLIC shall process Run-Out Claims for the applicable Run-Out Period (See Schedule of Financial Charges for applicable fees and Run-Out Period). At the termination of any applicable Run-Out Period, CHLIC shall cease processing Run-Out Claims and, subject to the requirements of Section 6.b, make all relevant records in its possession relating to such claims reasonably available to Employer or Employer's designee.\_ CHLIC is not required to provide proprietary information to Employer or any other party.
- c. Recognizing that Employer is not subject to ERISA, Employer hereby delegates to CHLIC the authority, responsibility and discretion to (i) determine eligibility and enrollment for coverage under the Plan according to the information provided by the Employer's designee, the County of Palm Beach.-(ii) make factual determinations and to interpret the provisions of the Plan to make coverage determinations on claims for Plan Benefits, (iii) conduct a full and fair review of each claim which has been denied as required by ERISA, (iv) decide level one mandatory appeals of "Urgent Care Claims" (as that term is defined in ERISA), and (v) conduct both mandatory levels of appeal determinations for all "Concurrent", "Pre-service" and "Post-service" claims (as those terms are defined under ERISA) and notify the Member or the Member's authorized representative of its decision. Employer will ensure that all summary plan description materials provided to Members reflect this delegation.
- d. In addition to the basic claim administrative duties described above, CHLIC shall also perform the Plan-related administrative duties agreed upon by the Parties and specified in Exhibit B.

#### Section 3. Funding and Payment of Claims

a. Employer shall establish a Bank Account, in accordance with Florida Statutes Section 136.091 and maintain in the Bank Account an amount sufficient at all times to fund checks written on it for (i) Plan Benefits; (ii) those charges and fees identified in the Schedule of Financial Charges as payable through the Bank Account (collectively "Bank Account Payments"); and (iii) any sales or use taxes, or any similar benefit- or Plan-related charge or assessment however denominated, which may be imposed by any governmental authority. Bank Account Payments may include without limitation: (i) all payments to participating providers including

10/05/2011

capitated (i.e. fixed per Member) payments to Participating Providers; (ii) cost containment charges, subrogation and other claim settlement charges. (iii) amounts owed to CHLIC; and (iv) amounts paid to CHLIC's affiliates and/or subcontractors for, among other things, in- and out-of network health care services/products provided to Members. CHLIC may credit the Bank Account with payments due Employer under its or an affiliate's stop loss policy.

- b. CHLIC, as agent for the Employer, shall make Bank Account Payments from the Bank Account in the amount CHLIC reasonably determines to be proper under the Plan and/or under this Agreement.
- c. In the event that sufficient funds are not available in the Bank Account to pay all Bank Account Payments when due, CHLIC shall cease to process claims for Plan Benefits including Run-Out Claims.
- d. CHLIC will promptly adjust any underpayment of Plan Benefits by drawing additional funds due the claimant from the Bank Account. In the event CHLIC overpays a claim for Plan Benefits or pays Plan Benefits to the wrong party, it shall take all reasonable steps to recover the overpayment; however, CHLIC shall not be required to initiate court, mediation, arbitration or other administrative proceedings to recover any overpayment. CHLIC shall not be liable to the Employer for unrecovered claim overpayments that are the result of mistakes of judgment or other actions taken in good faith. However, CHLIC shall reimburse the Plan for unrecovered overpayments resulting from its failure, in the aggregate, to perform its duties with the degree of skill and judgment possessed by other third party administrators experienced in furnishing claim administration services to plans of similar size and characteristics as the Plan.
- e. Following termination of this Agreement, Employer shall remain liable for payment of all due Bank Account Payments and for all reimbursements due Members under the Plan. Employer shall promptly reimburse CHLIC for any Bank Account Payments paid by CHLIC with its own funds and no such payment by CHLIC shall be construed as an assumption of any of Employer's liability.

This provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

#### Section 4. Charges

- a. <u>Charges</u>. CHLIC shall provide to Employer a monthly statement of all charges Employer is obligated to pay under this Agreement including sales or use taxes, or any similar benefit- or plan-related charge, surcharge or assessment, however denominated, which may be imposed by any governmental authority that are not paid as Bank Account Payments. Payment of all billed charges shall be due on the first day of the month, as indicated on the monthly statement. Employer shall remit payment of charges billed by the forty-fifth (45th) day following receipt of a proper invoice. Payments remitted after the forty-fifth (45<sup>th</sup>) day of receipt of a proper invoice may be subject to late charges as provided for by Florida Statutes Section 218 "FLORIDA PROMPT PAYMENT ACT."
- Member Changes Additions and Terminations. If a Member's effective date is on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month, full charges applicable to that Member shall be due for that Member for that month. If coverage does not start or ceases on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month for a Member, no charges shall be due for that Member for that month.
- c. <u>Retroactive Member Changes and Terminations</u>. Employer shall remain responsible for all charges and Bank Account Payments incurred or charged through the date CHLIC processed Employer's notice of a retroactive change or termination of Membership. However, if the change or termination would result in a reduction in charges, CHLIC shall credit to Employer the reduction in charges charged for the shorter of (a) the sixty (60) day period preceding the date CHLIC processes the notice, or (b) the period from the date of the change or termination to the date CHLIC processes the notice.

This provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

10/05/2011

#### Section 5. Enrollment and Determination of Eligibility

- a. <u>Eligibility Determinations and Information</u>. Employer is responsible for administering Plan enrollment. In determining any person's right to benefits under the Plan, CHLIC shall rely upon enrollment and eligibility information provided by the Employer. Such information shall identify the effective date of eligibility and the termination date of eligibility and shall be provided promptly to CHLIC in a form and with such other information as reasonably may be required by CHLIC for the proper administration of the Plan.
- b. <u>Release of Liability</u>. Notwithstanding any inconsistent provision of this Agreement to the contrary, if Employer, fails to provide CHLIC with accurate enrollment and eligibility information, benefit design requirements, or other agreed-upon information in CHLIC's standard timeframe and format, CHLIC shall have no liability under this Agreement for any act or omission by CHLIC, or its employees, affiliates, subcontractors, agents or representatives, directly or indirectly caused by such failure.
- c. <u>Reconciliation of Eligibility and Information and Default Terminations.</u> CHLIC will periodically share potential discrepancies in eligibility information with Employer. Employer will review and reconcile any discrepancies within thirty (30) days of receipt. If Employer fails to timely do so, CHLIC may terminate coverage for any Member not listed as eligible in Employer's submitted eligibility information.

#### Section 6. Claim Audits and Confidentiality

- a. <u>Claim Audit.</u> Employer may, in accordance with the following requirements and at no additional charge while this Agreement is in effect, audit CHLIC's payment of Plan Benefits:
  - i. Employer shall provide CHLIC forty-five (45) days advance written request for audit from the latter of (i) receipt by CHLIC of the audit scope letter or (ii) the fully executed Claim Audit Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit C. Employer will designate with CHLIC's consent, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, an independent, third party auditor to conduct the audit (the "Auditor). In addition, Employer and CHLIC will agree upon the date for the audit during regular business hours at CHLIC's office(s). Employer shall be responsible for its Auditor's costs. Except as otherwise agreed to by the parties in writing prior to the commencement of the audit, the audit shall be conducted in accordance with the terms of CHLIC's Claim Audit Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit C, which is hereby agreed to by Employer and which shall be signed by the Auditor prior to the start of the audit.
  - ii. Employer may conduct one such audit every Plan Year (but not within six (6) months of a prior audit
- iii. Auditor will review payment documents relating to a random, statistically valid sample of two-hundred twenty-five (225) claims paid during the two prior Plan years and not previously audited (the "Audit") subject to any contrary terms in Participating Provider agreements. With respect to the Audit, the scope may include types of claims prone to overpayments provided the types of claims prone to underpayments are equally included and will exclude electronic analysis. Any claim adjustments will be based upon the actual claims reviewed and not upon statistical projections or extrapolations. If significant erroneous claim payments are identified by an audit, the Employer and CHLIC will further evaluate such errors and mutually determine reasonable and appropriate steps to address such errors, subject to the provisions of Section 3.d. and 7.d. of this Agreement. CHLIC will provide written confirmation upon completion of any such steps mutually agreed upon. Such steps may include, but are not limited to generating claim impact reports specific to the error trends, providing written validation of underpayments being corrected, and providing recovery reports to validate successful recovery.

## b. Confidentiality

i. Subject to the requirements of Applicable Law, the terms of this Agreement and the Privacy Addendum in Exhibit D, a signed Business Associate agreement between Employer and designee, and a signed

10/05/2011

Confidentiality Agreement by applicable designee, CHLIC shall release copies of confidential claims and Plan Benefit payment information in CHLIC's claims system ("Confidential Information") and may release copies of proprietary information relating to the Plan in CHLIC's claims system ("Proprietary Information") to the Employer and/or its designees. Employer agrees that Employer and its designees will keep Confidential Information and Proprietary Information confidential and will use Confidential Information and Proprietary Information solely for the purpose of administering the Plan or as otherwise required by law. Employer is solely responsible for the consequences of any use, misuse, or disclosure of Confidential Information provided by CHLIC pursuant to this paragraph b.

- ii CHLIC will maintain the confidentiality of all Protected Health Information in its possession in accordance with the Privacy Addendum in Exhibit D and any applicable state privacy laws.
- c. Upon termination of this Agreement and subject to the provisions of Section 6.b above, CHLIC shall make information available to the extent administratively feasible if the Parties agree upon the charge to be paid by Employer.
- d. CHLIC acknowledges that, as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, Palm Beach County has established the Office of the Inspector General in Palm Beach County Code, Section 2-421 2-440, as may be amended. CHLIC further acknowledges that, to the extent required by then current law, the Inspector General's authority may include but is not limited to the power to review past, present and proposed County contracts, transactions, accounts and records, to require the production of records, and to audit, investigate, monitor, and inspect the activities of the CHLIC, its officers, agents, employees, and lobbyists in order to ensure compliance with contract requirements and detect corruption and fraud. Finally, CHLIC also acknowledges that as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, and to the extent required by law, failure to cooperate with the Inspector General or interfering with or impeding any investigation shall be in violation of Palm Beach County Code, Section 2-421 2-440, and punished pursuant to Section 125.69, Florida Statutes, in the same manner as a second degree misdemeanor.

The obligations set forth in this section, shall survive termination of the Agreement.

#### Section 7. Plan Benefit Liability

a. <u>Employer Liability for Plan Benefits.</u> Employer is responsible for all Plan Benefits including any Plan Benefits paid as a result of any legal action. Employer is responsible for reimbursing CHLIC, its directors, officers and employees for any reasonable expense incurred (excluding reasonable attorneys' fees) by them in the defense of any action or proceeding involving a claim for Plan Benefits. CHLIC shall reasonably cooperate with Employer in its defense of such actions.

If CHLIC pays a claim for Extra-Contractual Benefits, Employer is responsible for funding the payment and such payments shall not be considered in determining reimbursements or payments under stop loss insurance or in determining any risk-sharing or performance guarantee reimbursements. Employer shall reimburse

CHLIC for any liability or expenses (excluding reasonable attorneys' fees) it may incur in connection with making such payments.

- b. <u>Employer Liability for Plan Related Expenses.</u> Employer shall reimburse CHLIC for any amounts CHLIC may be required to pay (i) as state premium tax or any similar Plan-related tax, charge, surcharge or assessment, or (ii) under any unclaimed or abandoned property, or escheat law, with respect to Plan Benefits and any penalties and/or interest thereon.
- c. <u>Alternative Litigation Management Option</u>. Prior to the beginning of each Plan Year, and contingent upon timely payment by Employer of the associated additional "Claim Litigation Charge" set forth in the Schedule of Financial Charges, Employer may elect to have CHLIC assume responsibility for the management of any

10/05/2011

claim-related legal action and bear the legal expenses associated with defending such action so long as CHLIC processed the claim(s) in dispute. This option does not extend to actions against Employer and/or CHLIC related to the payment of Extra-Contractual Benefits. Each Party will provide notice to the other of any action and will fully cooperate in the defense of the action unless a potential conflict of interest exists. Nothing in this Section shall be read to contravene the explicit terms of 7(a) and 7(b). Employer shall remain responsible for payment of any benefits determined due under the Plan and any damages or penalties assessed in connection with the action.

d. Standard of Care/Indemnity: In performing its obligations under this Agreement, CHLIC shall use reasonable diligence and that degree of skill and judgment possessed by one experienced in furnishing claim administration services to plans of similar size and characteristics as the Plan. CHLIC shall not be liable to the Employer for mistakes of judgment or other actions taken in good faith (including benefits erroneously overpaid) but shall be liable to and indemnify the Employer for any non-benefit loss, cost or expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs) for which Employer may become liable in consequence of any acts or omissions of CHLIC which, in the aggregate, constitute a failure on the part of CHLIC to perform its claim administration obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the standard set forth above

These reimbursement obligations shall survive termination of this Agreement.

# Section 8. Modification of Plan and Administrative Duties and Charges

- a. CHLIC shall have the right to revise the charges identified in this Agreement giving a minimum of one hundred eighty (180) days written notice stating specifically what, if any rate change is proposed, (i) on each anniversary of this Agreement, (ii) upon any modification or amendment of the benefits under the Plan, (iii) upon any variation of fifteen percent (15%) or more in the number of Members used by CHLIC to calculate its charges under the Agreement, and/or (iv) upon any change in law or regulation that materially impacts CHLIC's liabilities and/or responsibilities under this Agreement.
- b. Employer shall provide CHLIC written notice of any modification or amendment to the Plan sufficiently in advance of any such change as to allow CHLIC to implement the modification or amendment. Employer and CHLIC shall agree upon the manner and timing of the implementation subject to CHLIC's system and operational capabilities.

#### Section 9. Modification of Agreement

This Agreement constitutes the entire contract between the Parties regarding the subject matter herein. Except, as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Agreement shall control in the event of a conflict with the terms of any other agreements. No modification or amendment hereto shall be valid unless in writing and signed by an authorized person of each of the Parties, except that modification of charges pursuant to Section 8 above may be made by written notice to Employer by CHLIC.

#### Section 10. Laws Governing Contract

- a. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida without regard to conflict of law rules, and both Parties consent to the venue and jurisdiction of its courts. Venue shall be in Palm Beach County, Florida.
- b. The Parties shall perform their obligations under this Agreement in conformance with all Applicable Laws and regulatory requirements.

10/05/2011

#### Section 11. Information in CHLIC's Processing Systems

CHLIC may retain and use all Plan-related claim and Plan Benefit payment information recorded for or otherwise integrated into CHLIC's business records including claim processing systems during the ordinary course of business (provided, however, that claim or payment information will be available to Employer pursuant to Section 6). CHLIC will retain claim and payment information as required by Applicable Law.

#### Section 12. Resolution of Disputes

Any dispute between the Parties arising from or relating to the performance or interpretation of this Agreement ("**Controversy**") shall be resolved exclusively pursuant to the following mandatory dispute resolution procedures:

- a. Any Controversy shall first be referred to an executive level employee of each Party who shall meet and confer with his/her counterpart to attempt to resolve the dispute ("Executive Review") as follows: The disputing Party shall give the other Party written notice of the Controversy and request Executive Review. Within twenty (20) days of such written request, the receiving Party shall respond to the other in writing. The notice and the response shall each include a summary of and support for the Party's position. Within thirty (30) days of the request for Executive Review, an employee of each Party, with full authority to resolve the dispute, shall meet and attempt to resolve the dispute.
- b. If the Controversy has not been resolved within thirty-five (35) calendar days of the request of Executive Review under Section 12.a, above, the Parties agree to mediate the Controversy in accordance with the American Health Lawyers Association Alternative Dispute Resolution Service Rules of Procedure for Mediation ("Mediation"). The mediation shall be conducted in Palm Beach County, Florida. Each Party shall assume its own costs and attorneys' fees. The mediator's compensation and expenses and any administrative fees or costs associated with the mediation proceeding shall be borne equally by the Parties.
- c. If the Controversy has not been resolved by Executive Review or Mediation, the Controversy shall be settled exclusively by binding arbitration. The arbitration shall be conducted in the same location as noted in Section 12.b. above, in accordance with the American Health Lawyers Association Alternative Dispute Resolution Service Rules of Procedure for Arbitration. The arbitration shall be binding on the Parties to the Agreement and on any respective affiliates which joined in the arbitration. The arbitrator's decision shall be final, conclusive and binding, and no action at law or in equity may be instituted by either Party other than to enforce the arbitrator's award. Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. Each Party shall assume its own costs and attorneys' fees. The arbitrator's compensation and expenses and any administrative fees or costs associated with the arbitration proceeding shall be borne equally by the Parties.

This provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

#### Section 13. Third Party Beneficiaries

This Agreement is for the benefit of Employer (the Employer's Plan, under Interlocal Agreement No. R2002 2287, includes Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners, Palm Tran, Inc. and may be amended from time to time and CHLIC and not for any other person. It shall not create any legal relationship between CHLIC and any employee, beneficiary or any other party claiming any right, whether legal or equitable, under the terms of this Agreement or of the Plan.

10/05/2011

#### Section 14. Waivers

No course of dealing or failure of either Party to strictly enforce any term, right or condition of this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of such term, right or condition. Waiver by either Party of any default shall not be deemed a waiver of any other default.

#### Section 15. Headings

Article, section, or paragraph headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

#### Section 16. Severability

If any provision or any part of a provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other portion of this Agreement.

#### Section 17. Force Majeure

Neither party shall be liable for any failure to meet any of the obligations required under this Agreement where such failure to perform is due to any contingency beyond the reasonable control of such party, its employees, officers, or directors. Such contingencies include, but are not limited to, acts or omissions of any person or entity not employed or reasonably controlled by such party, its employees, officers, or directors, acts of God, fires, wars, accidents, labor disputes or shortages, and governmental laws, ordinances, rules or regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this section shall not in any way alter or release the Employer from its obligations under Section 3 and 4 of this Agreement.

#### Section 18. Assignment and Subcontracting

With the exception of the specific language in Section 23, neither Party may assign any right, interest, or obligation hereunder without the express written consent of the other Party; provided, however that CHLIC may assign any right, interest, or responsibility under this Agreement to its affiliates and/or subcontract specific obligations under the Agreement provided that CHLIC shall not be relieved of its obligations under the Agreement when doing so.

#### Section 19. Notices

Except as otherwise provided, all notices or other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly made when (a) delivered in person, (b) delivered to an agent, such as an overnight or similar delivery service, (c) delivered electronically, or (d) deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed as follows:

To CHLIC: CIGNA Health and Life Insurance Company 401 Chestnut Street Suite 110 Chattanooga, TN 37402 Attention: Jenny Wilson, Underwriting Director

10/05/2011

To Employer: Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners 100 Australian Ave. Suite 200 West Palm Beach, FL 33406 Attention: Nancy Bolton, Director, Risk Management

CHLIC will send courtesy copies of notices to the following:

Palm Tran, Inc. 3201 Electronics Way West Palm Beach, FL 33407 Attention: LaVern Blackwood

Supervisor of Elections 240 S. Military Trail West Palm Beach, FL 33415 Attention: Amparo Korey

Palm Beach County Attorney's Office 301 North Olive Avenue, Suite 601 West Palm Beach, FL 33401 Attention: Tammy K. Fields

The address to which notices or communications may be given by either Party may be changed by written notice given by one Party to the other pursuant to this Section.

#### Section 20. Identifying Information and Internet Usage

Except, as necessary in the performance of their duties under this Agreement, neither Party may use the other's name, logo, service marks, trademarks or other identifying information or to establish a link to the other's World Wide Web site without its prior written approval.

#### Section 21. Nondiscrimination

CHLIC-represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital status, familial status, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression.

#### Section 22. Certification

As provided in F.S. 287.132-133, by entering into this contract or performing any work in furtherance hereof, CHLIC certifies, to the best of its knowledge, that it, its affiliates, suppliers, subcontractors and consultants The CHLIC warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital status, familial status, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression.

10/05/2011

#### Section 23 Small Business Enterprise

CHLIC will to subcontract the services, as specified on the Schedule of Financial Charges, to Small Business Enterprises (SBE), and as it relates to the SBE subcontractors the following apply:

- If a subcontractor fails to perform or make progress, as required by this Agreement, and it is necessary to replace the subcontractor to complete the work in a timely fashion, the CHLIC shall promptly do so, subject to acceptance of the new subcontractor by the Employer.
- CHLIC agrees to abide by all provisions of the Palm Beach County Code establishing the SBE Program, as amended, and understands that failure to comply with any of the requirements will be considered a breach of contract.
- CHLIC shall provide the Employer with a copy of the CHLIC's contract with any SBE subcontractor or any other related documentation upon request.
- CHLIC understands the requirements to comply with the tasks and proportionate dollar amounts throughout the term of this Agreement as it relates to the use of SBE firms.
- CHLIC agrees that it will only be permitted to replace a certified SBE subcontractor who is unwilling or unable to perform. Such substitutions must be done with another certified SBE in order to maintain the SBE percentages established in this Agreement. Requests for substitutions of SBE's must be submitted to the County's representative and to the Office of Small Business Assistance.
- The CHLIC agrees to maintain all relevant records and information necessary to document compliance pursuant to Palm Beach County Code, Chapter 2, Article III, Sections 2-71 through 2-80.13 and any revisions thereto, and will allow the COUNTY to inspect such records.

#### Section 24 Request for Proposal

The provisions of RFP 11-057/LJ and all Amendments thereto, attached as Exhibit G, are hereby incorporated into the Agreement. To the extent the provisions of RFP 11-057/LJ and all Amendments thereto conflict with any other terms of the Agreement, Schedules, Exhibits, Addendums, Amendments, or like documents, the terms of the Agreement, Schedules, Exhibits, Addendums, Amendments, or like documents control.

10/05/2011

# SIGNATURES

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF,** the parties have made and executed this Third Amendment to the Agreement on behalf of the Supervisor of Elections, SWA and The County on behalf of its Department of Risk Management and Palm Tran, Inc. and has hereunto set its hand the day and year above written.

Dated at Hartford, Connecticut

This 5<sup>th</sup> day of October, 2012

# THE SUP

# COMPANY

CIGNA HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE

By: Anolua M. Balestuero Name: Andrea M. Balestriere

andrea.balestriere@CIGNA.com Its Contractual Agreement Lead Duly Authorized

THE SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY By:\_\_\_\_\_

Signature) Inde HAT (Print Name) (Signature) eila (Print Name)

ATTEST: SHARON BOCK, CLERK & COMPTRO

puty Clerk & ptroller 114141111

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY CONDITIONS

B١ County Attorney

10/05/2011

R2011 16 67 OCT 18 2011

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA BY ITS BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AND ON BEHALF OF PALM TRAN, INC.

🕻. Marcus, Chair Kanen

lts

APPROVED AS TO TERMS AND

Rallin By Department pirector

14

LER.

# SIGNATURES

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF,** the parties have made and executed this Third Amendment to the Agreement on behalf of the Supervisor of Elections, SWA and The County on behalf of its Department of Risk Management and Palm Tran, Inc. and has hereunto set its hand the day and year above written.

Dated at Hartford, Connecticut

This 5<sup>th</sup> day of October, 2012

CIGNA HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

By: HUULA. M. Ballstuir Name: Andrea M. Balestriere

andrea.balestriere@CIGNA.com Its Contractual Agreement Lead Duly Authorized

WITNESSES (Signature) moo (Print-Name) Signature) eila (Print Name)

THE SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY By: Muran Bucher

Bucherz Susan

Its Supervisor of Flochons

# R 2011 16 67 OCT 18 2011

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA BY ITS BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AND ON BEHALF OF PALM TRAN, INC.

Bv: Marcus, Chair Karen 7

APPROVED AS TO TERMS AND

B١ Department D

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY CONDITIONS By:

County Afforney

10/05/2011

ATTEST:

Deputy

SHARON BOCK, G

Cler

14

ERK &COMPTROLLER

troller

# **SIGNATURES**

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Third Amendment to the Agreement on behalf of the Supervisor of Elections, SWA and The County on behalf of its Department of Risk Management and Palm Tran, Inc. and has hereunto set its hand the day and year above written.

Dated at Hartford, Connecticut

This 5<sup>th</sup> day of October, 2012

CIGNA HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

ndrea M. Balesterre By: Name: ndrea M. Balestriere

andrea.balestriere@CIGNA.com Its Contractual Agreement Lead **Duly Authorized** 

WITNESSES ignature) lime SURNAT Print Name) Signature) eiler (Print Name)

THE SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY By: **x** MM

Susan Buchez

PORVISON OF Electrons Its JU

# R2011 16 67 OCT 18 2011

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA BY ITS BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AND ON BEHALF PALM TRAN, INC.

R Deputy Clérk & Comptroller FLORIDA APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCYCONDILIONS By: County Attorney

SHARON BOCK, CLERK & COMPTROLLER

10/05/2011

ATTEST:

Kare

By: Department

APPROVED AS TO TERMS AND

Marcus, Chair

# Schedule of Financial Charges

Certain fees and charges identified in this Schedule of Financial Charges will be billed to Employer monthly in accordance with CHLIC's then current standard billing practices. However, and only to the extent permitted by F.S. Section 136.091, as amended, CHLIC is authorized to pay all fees and charges from the Bank Account unless otherwise specified in this Agreement

	MEDICAL ADMINISTRATION CHARGES (Includes Commission payments agreed to by Employer)	
Product	Description	Charge
Medical	Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) with PHS Plus Medical Management	\$16.27/employee/month
Medical	Network with PHS Plus Medical Management	\$16.27/employee/month
Medical	Network Point of Service (POS) with PHS Plus Medical Management	\$16.27/employee/month
	MEDICAL NETWORK ACCESS FEE	
Product	Description	Charge
- -		
Medical	PPO Access Fee	\$15.90/employee/month
Medical	Network Access Fee	\$17.49/employee/month
Medical	Network POS Access Fee	\$17.49/employee/month
Mental Health/Substance	Administrative Charge for Mental Health/Substance Abuse Services including lifestyle	\$2.51/member/month
Abuse	management programs and a cognitive behavioral modification program.	Network Products only;
1.0450		North Carolina
		Members. Charges are
		processed through the
		Bank Account includes
		all services and claims

10/05/2011

Def	initions
	"Average Wholesale Price" or "AWP" is the Average Wholesale Price for a given pharmaceutical product in effect on the dispense date for the actual package size dispensed as published by First DataBank, Medi-Span or other alternative publication or benchmark reasonably designated by CHLIC.
	"Brand Drug Claim" is a claim for a pharmaceutical product that is adjudicated as a brand drug as indicated on the claim record generated by the claim processing system used by CHLIC. For application of discounts and dispensing fees, a "Brand Drug Claim" includes a claim for a generic drug within its exclusivity period or other period of limited competition, as CHLIC reasonably determines under its standard policies.
•	"Generic Drug Claim" is a claim for a pharmaceutical product that is adjudicated as a generic drug as indicated on the claim record generated by the claim processing system used by CHLIC. For application of discounts and dispensing fees, a "Generic Drug Claim" does not include a claim for a generic drug within its exclusivity period or other period of limited competition, as CHLIC reasonably determines under its standard policies
•	"Mail Service Pharmacy" or "CIGNA Tel-Drug" or "CIGNA Home Delivery Pharmacy" is a pharmacy that is owned or operated by CHLIC or ar affiliated company(ies) (currently, Tel-Drug, Inc. and Tel-Drug of Pennsylvania, LLC), which dispenses drugs covered under the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit by mail. and is not a Retail Pharmacy.
•	"Pharmacy Benefit" means the terms of the Plan that govern coverage and care/utilization management of drugs and related supplies dispensed to Members and charged to the Plan by the Mail Service Pharmacy or Retail Pharmacies through CHLIC's pharmacy claim processing system.
•	"Rebates" or "Manufacturer Formulary Payments" means amounts that CHLIC collects under contracts it enters into with drug manufacturers that are based on utilization of certain of the manufacturers' brand drugs under the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit and the drug's status on the CIGNA drug formulary.
•	"Retail Pharmacy" is a pharmacy that is entitled to payment under the Plan for drugs it dispenses that are covered under the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit, and is not a Mail Service Pharmacy.
•	"Specialty Drug Claim" is a claim for a pharmaceutical product that is reasonably determined by CHLIC to be a specialty drug in accordance with industry practice. Specialty drugs generally are (i) injected or infused and derived from living cells, or are oral non-protein compounds (e.g., oral chemotherapy drugs); (ii) target the underlying condition, which is usually one of a relatively rare, chronic and costly nature; and/or (iii) require restricted access and/or close monitoring.

÷.

-2. <sup>1</sup>- 1

CHARGES FOR DRUGS COVERED UNDER THE PLAN'S PHARMACY BENEFIT

Drug Dispensed by Mail Service Pharmacy: CHLIC will charge Employer the following for claims covered under the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit and dispensed by the Mail Service Pharmacy:

Brand Drug Claims: AWP minus an average discount of 25% plus an average dispensing fee of \$0.00.

Generic Drug Claims: The drug's charge on a CHLIC generic Maximum Allowable Charge schedule that generates an annual average aggregate discount across Generic Drug Claims dispensed at CIGNA Home Delivery Pharmacy to CHLIC's group-client book of business of AWP minus 75.5% plus an average dispensing fee across such Generic Drug Claims of not more than \$0.00.

Specialty Drug Claims: The drug's charge under a national specialty drug discount schedule that generates a 13% annual average aggregate discount off AWP across Specialty Drug Claims dispensed at CIGNA Home Delivery Pharmacy to CHLIC's group-client book of business.
 Drugs Dispensed by Retail Pharmacies: CHLIC will charge Employer the following for drugs covered under the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit and dispensed by a Retail Pharmacy to the Plan Members, subject to the "Drug Charges – Additional Provisions" section:

**Retail Brand Drug Claims**: The lesser of (i) AWP minus the contracted discount of 16.5% plus the contracted dispensing fee charged by the Retail Pharmacy for the Brand Drug Claim of \$1.20; or (ii) the Retail Pharmacy's usual and customary charge.

**Retail Generic Drug Claims** (other than those to which the above brand discount applies): The lesser of: (i) the drug's charge on a CHLIC generic Maximum Allowable Charge schedule that generates an annual average aggregate discount across Generic Drug Claims dispensed at Retail Pharmacies to CHLIC's group-client book of business of AWP minus 73.5% (Plan-specific results may vary based on drug mix), plus an average dispensing fee across such Generic Drug Claims of no more than \$1.90; or (ii) the Retail Pharmacy's usual and customary charge.

**Retail Specialty Drug Claims:** The lesser of (i) AWP minus an annual average aggregate discount of 10.5%, plus an average dispensing fee of no more than \$1.80; or (ii) the Retail Pharmacy's usual and customary charge.

DRUG CHARGES – ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

10/05/2011

- CIGNA Home Delivery Pharmacy's discounts are applied to the manufacturer average wholesale price (AWP) for the dispensed size (or to the AWP for the manufacturer-packaged quantity closest to the dispensed size, if there is no AWP for the dispensed size).
- CIGNA Home Delivery Pharmacy will be reimbursed through the Bank Account for the price (discounted as per this Schedule) for replacement prescriptions shipped by CIGNA Home Delivery Pharmacy which are reported as lost or damaged despite CIGNA Home Delivery Pharmacy's shipment to the Participant's correct name and address.
- The amount paid to the Retail Pharmacy for Brand, Generic, or Specialty Drug Claims may or may not be equal to the amount charged to Employer, and CHLIC will absorb or retain any difference.
- An excess achieved in any Plan-specific discount floor or dispensing fee cap offered under this Agreement will be used to offset a shortfall in any other Plan-specific discount floor or dispensing fee cap offered under this Agreement.
- Industry Changes to or Replacement of Average Wholesale Price (AWP). Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, including in this Exhibit, in the event of any major change in market conditions affecting the pharmaceutical or pharmacy benefit management market, including, for example, any change in the markup, methodologies, processes or algorithms underlying the published AWP(s), CHLIC may adjust any or all of the charges, rates, discounts, guarantees and/or fees in connection with CHLIC's administration of the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit hereunder, including any that are based on AWP, as it reasonably deems necessary to preserve the economic value or benefit of this Agreement as it existed immediately prior to such change. Additionally, and notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, including in this Exhibit, CHLIC may replace AWP as its pharmaceutical pricing benchmark with an alternative benchmark and/or may replace First DataBank, Medi-Span, or other such publication as its source for the AWP or alternative benchmark with a different pricing source, provided that CHLIC adjusts any or all such AWP-Based Charges or such alternative benchmark-based charges as it reasonably deems necessary to preserve the economic value or benefit of this Agreement or immediately prior to the event(s) giving rise to such replacement, as the case may be.
- Audits of Pharmacy Claims under the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit. Employer may, in accordance with the following requirements and at no additional charge while this Agreement is in effect, audit, once every Plan Year (but not within 6 months of a prior audit), such information that is directly related to CHLIC's payment of claims under the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit as necessary to determine whether CHLIC has met its contractual obligations related to claim payment (the "Audit"). Employer shall provide CHLIC with 45 days' advance written request for the Audit. Employer and CHLIC will agree on an independent, third party auditor to conduct the Audit (the "Auditor") and the date for the Audit during regular business hours at CHLIC's office where the information to be audited is located. Employer shall be responsible for its Auditor's costs. The Audit shall be conducted in accordance with CHLIC's Pharmacy-Claim Audit Agreement, which shall be signed by CHLIC, Employer, and the Auditor prior to the start of the Audit. The Audit may include receipt and review of some of the claims information by the auditor prior to the on-site portion of the audit. This Section supersedes any other provision in this Agreement governing claim audits with respect to audits of claims under the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit.

10/05/2011

**DRUG MANUFACTURER-PAYMENT SHARING** Subject to the caveats below, CHLIC will remit to Employer the following portion of Rebates that CHLIC collects with respect to utilization under the Plan's Pharmacy Benefit:

The greater of 100% of Rebates, or the sum of \$20.00 multiplied by the number of Retail Pharmacy Brand Drug Claims plus \$50.00 multiplied by the number of Mail Service Pharmacy Brand Drug Claims.

#### Caveats:

(1) Upon termination of this Agreement, CHLIC may apply Rebates otherwise payable to offset Bank Account or other deficits of charges identified in this Agreement.

(2) Should Employer terminate this Agreement before completion of the then-current Plan Year, no additional Rebates shall be due with respect to that Plan Year.

(3) All applicable caveats communicated in writing by CHLIC in connection with its proposal made in connection with this Agreement.

(4) For percentage-based sharing arrangements, payout amount may differ slightly from the stated percentage when payout occurs before manufacturers' final reconciliations and payments are made to CHLIC.

(5) Rebates are not paid out on single source generic drug claims or Run-Out Claims.

(6) CHLIC contracts with drug manufacturers on its own behalf, and not as agent of the Employer or the Plan.

<u>Timing of Rebate Pay-Out</u>: Remittance will be provided within ninety (90) days after the close of each applicable calendar quarter for the portion of such calendar quarter that coincides with the Plan Year.

AUDIT RIGHTS RELATED TO MANUFACTURER PAYMENTS Employer's third party auditor may audit records directly related to CHLIC's performance of its obligations hereunder regarding sharing of manufacturer formulary payments (a/k/a "rebates") once in each twelve-month period upon the following conditions: Employer shall provide at least forty-five (45) days written notice to CHLIC; the auditor (including its individual auditors conducting the audit) shall be agreeable to Employer and CHLIC; a mutually agreed upon non-disclosure/non-use contract shall be executed by Employer, the auditor and CHLIC; the records to be audited shall be no more than two years old as of the date of the audit; the scope of records to be audited shall be as mutually agreed upon by Employer's third party auditor and CHLIC as those which are necessary to determine compliance with the rebate-sharing obligations under this Agreement; the audit shall be conducted at a mutually acceptable time during regular business hours at CHLIC's office where such records are located; records shall not be removed or photocopied without CHLIC's express written consent; the auditor shall provide its audit report to CHLIC and Employer at the same time; and the auditor may disclose the aggregate amount of manufacturer formulary payments due Employer but no other details of CHLIC's manufacturer contracts of which the auditor is apprised, if any.

	FEES FOR PROCESSING RUN-OUT CLAIMS	
Network & Network POS		No Additional Cost
	CHLIC shall not be required to process Run-Out Claims until it has received full payment of the required fees.	
РРО	Run-Out Period of twelve (12) months	The sum of the last four
	the required fees.	(4) months of medical administration charges applicable to the terminated Agreement.
Pharmacy	Run-Out Period of three (3) months for all pharmacy claims	No Additional Cost
	CHLIC shall not be required to process Run-Out Claims until it has received full payment of the required fees.	

10/05/2011

Subrogation/Conditional Claim Payment (Medical Only)	5% of recovery plus
	litigation costs if Counsel
	is retained and an
	appearance is filed on
	behalf of CHLIC or
	Employer if any
	litigation, or a lawsuit is
	filed on their behalf;
	29% of recovery if no
	Counsel is retained and
	in all other instances,
	including cases where
	state law requires that
	employee benefit plans
	be named as part
	defendants or
	involuntary plaintiffs.
	Notwithstanding any
	other amount reflected
	in the Conditional
	Claim/Subrogation
	<b>Recovery Services</b>
	Exhibit.

10/05/2011

22

.

	CHLIC COST CONTAINMENT FEES	
overed by the Plan. In vailable upon request. lifference between the ess the applicable venc harge that the provider	pany, administers the following programs to contain costs with respect to charges for health care administering these programs, CHLIC contracts with vendors to perform program related service CHLIC's charge for administering these programs is the percentage (indicated below) of either charge that the provider would have made absent the program savings and the charge made as a lor fee which generally ranges from 7-11% of the program savings) or (2) the "gross savings" (i. would have made absent the program savings and the charge made as a result of the program savings would have made absent the program savings and the charge made as a result of the program savings.	(1) the "net savings" (i.e. the result of the program savings, e. the difference between the avings; CHLIC pays the
negotiation of the bille Review (pre-payment). These programs are imp higher payments than i patient being balance b	ceived from non-Participating Providers, CHLIC may apply discounts available under agreement d charges. These programs are identified below as the Network Savings Program, Supplemental This is consistent with the claim administration practices applicable to CHLIC's' own health can elemented. CHLIC charges the percentage shown for administering these programs. Applying the f the maximum reimbursable charge is applied. Whereas application of the maximum reimbursa illed for the entire unreimbursed amount, applying these discounts avoids balance billing and su	te insurance business when ese discounts may result in ble charge may result in the
out-of pocket cost.	MEDICAL AND PHARMACY COST CONTAINMENT	
1	Network Savings Program	29% of net savings
	a 1 stal Network	29% of net savings
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	. Supplemental Network . Medical Bill Review – (Pre-payment Cost Containment for Non-contracted claims):	
	Inpatient Hospital Bill Review	Lesser of 5% of hospitz
	Line Item Analysis	bill or the savings achieved
		29% of net savings
	Professional Fee Negotiation	
	Outpatient Hospital Bill Review	29% of net savings
	Professional Fee Negotiation	29% of net savings
	Line Item Analysis Re-pricing	2
	Physician/Professional Bill Review	29% of net savings
	Professional Fee Negotiation     Medical Bill Review – (Pre or Post-payment Cost Containment for Non-contracted and	
	(Pre or Post-nayment Cost Containment for Non-contracted and	
•	4.   Medical Bill Review – (Pre of Post-payment Cost Containment for 2000 - Contracted claims):	

10/05/2011

.

23.

.

14

. .

.

		29% of the
	• Bill Audit	savings/recovery
		achieved plus hospital
		fees or expenses passed
		through
	DRG Validation and Appeals	29% of recovery plus
	DKG vanuation and Appeals	any fees or expenses
		passed through by the
		hospital or regulatory
		agency
	Inpatient Admission Retrospective Review	29% of recovery
	Modical Implant Device Audits	29% of recovery
5.	COB Vendor Recoveries [Exclusive of pharmacy programs where claims are adjudicated at time	29% of recovery
	prescription is received.]	
6.	Secondary Vendor Recovery Program	29% of recovery
7.	Provider Credit Balance Recovery Program	29% of recovery
8.	High Cost Specialty Pharmaceutical Audits	29% of recovery
9.	Pharmacy Vendor Recoveries	30% of recovery
10.	Class Action Recoveries	35% of recovery
	CARE MANAGEMENT/COST CONTAINMENT PROGRAM FEES	
	CHLIC arranges for third parties to provide care management services to:	Specific vendor fees and
	(i) contain the cost of specified health care services/items overall with respect to all plans	care management
	insured and/or administered by CHLIC, and/or	program services are
		available upon request.
	(ii) improve adherence to evidence based guidelines designed to promote patient safety and	
	efficient patient care.	
	ELIGIBILITY OVERPAYMENT RECOVERY FEES	29% of recovery
	Eligibility Overpayment Recovery Vendor Services	25 70 01 recovery

24

-1

	EXTERNAL REVIEW FEES External expert reviews may be required on a consultative basis as part of the internal appeal	\$500-\$4,000 Review
	process, or pursuant to a formal external review following exhaustion of the internal review	
	process. The range of external review charges is dependent on the nature and complexity of the	
	issue on appeal. In highly complex, non-routine cases or cases related to new technology or	
	experimental-investigational treatment, as part of the internal appeal process a panel of	
	reviewers may be necessary. External review charges will be commensurate with the number of	·
	reviewers, as well as their level of expertise and time required to complete the review.	
	STRATEGIC ALLIANCES	
	CHLIC contracts directly or indirectly with other managed care entities and third party network	All Medical Products
	vendors for access to their provider networks and discounts. These third parties charge either a	
	network access fee, which is included in CHLIC's monthly charges, or a percentage of the	
	savings realized on a claim by claim basis as a result of the application of their discounts.	
	Charges based on percentage of savings are paid from the Bank Account. Additional details	
	regarding specific charges will be provided upon request.	
	Capitation and fee-for-service charges for various vendors and other providers/arrangers of	All Products
	health care services and/or supplies will be paid as claims for Plan Benefits and will appear in	
	Employer's standard Bank Account activity data reports. Such payments will be at CHLIC's	
	applicable capitation or fee-for-service charges then in effect, which may be amended from time	
	to time. Additional details regarding charges and the identity of the vendor or provider of health	
	care services will be made available upon request.	
	NOTICE REGARDING PAYMENTS FROM THIRD PARTIES	
	Unless indicated otherwise in the Schedule of Financial Charges, CHLIC retains all payments it	All Pharmacy Product
	may receive from manufacturers of pharmaceutical products covered under the Plan.	im i narmacy i roduci
	Information on the amount of such payments with respect to the Plan will be provided upon	
	request.	
	From time to time, CHLIC, either directly or through its affiliates, contracts with vendors,	All Dece decede
,	provider network managers and providers in connection with various cost containment	All Products
	programs. CHLIC and its affiliates may receive payments from such parties that are intended to	

10/05/2011

Service	Description	Charge
HIPAA Certificates	Individual HIPAA certificates for Members who leave active coverage.	\$0.15/employee/month Included in Medical Administration Charge
Behavioral Health Care Advocacy	Behavioral Health Care Advocacy provides focused utilization review and case management of in-network, outpatient behavioral health services. (For PPO CA/NC Members Only)	Included in Medical Access Fee
Pharmacy Clinical Programs	CIGNA TheraCare® Program – a targeted condition drug therapy management program that targets individuals using specialty medications for certain chronic conditions and helps them better understand their condition, medication side effects and importance of adherence.	Included at No Additional Cost
Prior Authorization Reviews	Review requests for coverage of drugs subject to prior authorization. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, CHLIC's charges for the reviews will be deducted from Employer's contracted share of manufacturer payments.	Included at No Additional Cost
Your Health First-200	A proactive health education and improvement program for those with a chronic condition. The program involves services that span across the Member's health needs. Behavioral coaching principles and evidence based medicine guidelines are utilized to optimize self-management skills and foster sustained health improvements.	Included in Medical Access Fee
	Members are identified as having a chronic condition through a variety of sources including but not limited to: claim data, referrals, and self-identification. A variety of resources are provided to those with a chronic condition and based on severity and readiness to change. The program targets 60% of the chronic population for telephonic support. Identified Members work with a dedicated health advocate on improving their health.	
	<ul> <li>The program includes the following components:</li> <li>Chronic Condition Specific Coaching</li> <li>Pre and post discharge calls when CHLIC is the medical carrier</li> <li>Life style management coaching: stress, weight management and tobacco cessation</li> <li>Treatment decision support and coaching</li> </ul>	
	In order to continuously assess the effectiveness of our programs, some Members may be placed in a comparison group which receives alternative services, or even no services for a specified period. This will not affect the total number of Members targeted for outreach or any of the financial or clinical goals of the program.	

10/05/2011

26

÷

Claim Litigation	Claim Litigation Services	Included in Medical Administration Charge
	Small Business Enterprise Subcontractors	
Wellness services, including an on-site coordinator, biometric screenings Printing CHLIC materials including benefit summaries as further specified on attachment 1 to the Schedule of Financial Charges.	Please see Section 23 of ASO Agreement core language	Biometric charges are processed through the Bank Account. On-site Coordinator, and Print costs are included in the Medical Administration Charges.

10/05/2011

# Exhibit 1

# Schedule of Financial Charges

Small Business Enterprise Subcontractors

10/05/2011

#### SCHEDULE 1

.

.

4

DED OF ENENG DATE: 7/28/04011 THES DOCUMENT IS TO BE COMPLETED INFORMATION AND DOLLAR AMOUNT OF THE PETRIE IS IN SECTIONEL, PLEAS	BY THE PRILE CO.	TRACTOR F WORK I	AND SUMERIT O BE COMPLET ACT DE OKMA	ed by ALL 3 TION AND DO	EE -MATTER SUE	UKPERCEN	s on this i rel of wu
COMPLETED BY THE PENME ON THIS PE			n <del>je k</del> uriterite		ution fingel		
James, Automat and Passes weiniter	Niminiti Beniniti	Seill Dutzen	rantż	halfteme	Si quere	Carristin a. 1963 (Carristina)	Univer Plozer Specify
· A É A Associates Ta			<u>3570</u> 00				
		$\square$			6000		الله بالمراجع المراجع . محمد المراجع المراجع المراجع . المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع .
2 Markening Innorchons Enter	prises Inc.						
					، مىرىپ بارى اىر 2014 غىلى يېرىپىيىمى 1944 كالى يىرى ئى يېرى بارىيىتىكى يېرىكىيىكى يېرىكىيىكى		، <u>من این کار میں میں میں اور اور میں میں میں میں میں میں میں میں میں میں</u>
4					ى چې كې د يې	ىلى يەرىپىلىكى ئەرىپىلىرىنى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپ يەرىپىلىرىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى يەرىپىلىكى	
			ļ	C. a. La approximation	The survey of the state of the		e anty: cope _ the discourse
). (Plang un zékrimul éress é nacosterr)		esi c. l	357000	1	6.88-0		
Total Bis Trice ASONAF STORUSS \$ 20 C			VEE Participation Del		www.inama ut 15 soit.		

351

<. <

#### SCHEDULE 2

### LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS AN SBE-M/WBE SUBCONTRACTOR

work items to be p	performed and the dollar a /WBE Subcontractor are S	E-M/WBE Subcontractor an mount and/or percentage for BE certified to perform. Fai	each work item. SB	E credit will only be	given for items
PROJECT NUM	IBER:	77/LJ_PROJECT NAME:	Employee Self-Fu	nded Medical Ben	efits Plan
TO: <u>A &amp; Às</u>	sociates, Inc.		···		-
		(Name of Prime Bidder)			
The undersigned	is certified by Palm Beac	h County as a – (check one	or more, as applicat	ole):	
Small Business E	Interprise 🖌	Minority Business Enter	orise 🖌		· .
Black X	Hispanic Wom	en Cauca	sian Qther (F	lease Specify)	
Date of Palm Be	ach County Certification:	· 7/12/2011 to 7/11/2014	(Vendor#VC0	000134473)	
The undersigned May Be Used As		e following described work	in connection with	he above project. A	Additional Sheets
Line Item/ Lot No.	Item Description		Qty/Units	Unit Price	Total Price/ Percentage
	Flu Shots				Estimated
j	Biometric Screening	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••			\$153,000 Estimated \$132,000
	One Full-time on-site	Wellness Coordinator	1		Estimated \$72,000
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
at the following	price or percentage	estimated	5357,000 mtractor's quote)	and a manager of the state of the	
and will enter in	to a formal agreement for	work with you conditioned		a of a contract with	Palm Beach County.
subcontract mus		portion of this subcontract	to a non-certified SI	3E subcontractor, th	e amount of any such
	subcontractor understand ions to other bidders.	ls that the provision of this f A	form to Prime Bidde 3 ASSOCIALC		ubcontractor from
		(Print 1	name of SBE-M/WE	E Subcontractor)	

By: And Sitmanure Wohey, CEO By:

(Print name/title of person executing on behalf of SBE-M/WBE Subcontractor) Date: 07/14/2011

#### SCHEDULE 2

#### LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS AN SBE-M/WBE SUBCONTRACTOR

This document must be completed by the SBE-MAN BE Subcontractor and submitted with bid packet. Specify in detail, the particular work items to be performed and the dollar amount and/or percentage for each work item. SBE credit will only be given for items which the SBE-MAN BE Subcontractor are SBE certified to perform. Failure to properly complete Schedule 2 may result in your SBE participation not being counted.

	ting Innovations Enterprises, Inc. (Name of Prime Bidder)			
he undersigne	d is certified by Palm Beach County as a - (check one	or more, as applicab	le):	
mall Business	Enterprise / Minority Business Enter	prise <del>×</del>		
llack	Hispanie Women Cauc	asian Other (P	lease Spocify)	annan agus a' e a
Date of Palm B	each County Certification: 8/5/2009 to 8/4/2012	(Vendor # VC00)	00124616)	
vlay Be Used ,	ed is prepared to perform the following described work As Necessary Item Description	t in connection with a Qty/Units	he above project. A Unit Price	dditional Sheets Total Price/
Line Item/ Lat No.				Percentage
	Printing of CIGNA Benefit Summary Booklets,			Estimated
	Printing of CIGNA Benefit Summary Booklets, Rider Booklets, Flyers and Postcards plus postuge.			Estimated
	Printing of CIGNA Benefit Summary Booklets, Rider Booklets, Flyers and Postcards plus postage.			Estimated
	Printing of CIGNA Benefit Summary Booklets, Rider Booklets, Flyers and Postcards plus postuge.			Estimated
.at No.	Printing of CIGNA Benefit Summary Booklets, Rider Booklets, Flyers and Postcards plus postage.			Estimated

Price or Percentage

The undersigned subcontractor understands that the provision of this form to Prime Bidder does not prevent Subcontractor from providing quotations to other bidders.

Meting Turselation Conter in and, (Print name of SBE-M/WBE Subcontractor)

By: Val Carl (Signature)

 $\frac{\sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{j=1}^{n} \frac{P_{c,i}}{P_{c,i}} = \frac{P_{c,i}}{P_{c,i}}$ (Print namé/title of person executing on behalf of SBE-M/WBE Subcontractor) Date:  $\frac{P_{c,i}}{P_{c,i}} = \frac{P_{c,i}}{P_{c,i}}$ 

#### SCHEDULE 3 SHE NUMBE ACTIVITY FORM

SEE-MANBE ACTIVITY FOR MONTH ENDING\_\_\_\_\_\_ PROJECT#:\_\_\_\_

PROJECT NAME

PRIME CONTRACTOR NAME\_

PROJECT SUPERVISOR.

Schedule 3 is used to show the monthly payment activity for each SBE-M/WBE Subcontractor on the project. It also shows approved change orders as they impact the SBE-MWBE Subcontractors. It is to be submitted by the Prime with each monthly payment request to Falm Beach County. In the 385-MWBE Subcontracting Information section, list the name(s) of each SBE-MWBE Subcontractor on the project and the total contracted amount for each SBE-MWBE Subcontractor on the project. As the project proceeds, please complete each solumn under the SEEMAVEE Subcontracting Information section accordingly. In the SEE MAVEE Category, please sheek the appropriate category that represents each SBE-M/WBE Subcontractor.

	SBE-W	WBE SUBC	ONTRACTI	NG INFORM	ATION			SI	)E-M/WB	E Cat	egory (c	uock all	applicabl	e)
Name of SBE-MANDE Subscritacler	SSE-MANEE Total Contract Amount	Approved Change Orders	Revised SSE- NVV-BE Contract Arroditi	Aristen diama ion SBE-Ariabe Sub This Beilos	Ancount distantor CBE- Noves Dur to Date	b Cale for 585-MAVEE Sabconductor	Aciusi Staneg Dite	Nilnorty Susingsa. (*)	Sm31 Buinais (*)	Black	Hepania	Waman	Carcasian	Other TPhease Spiacify
										L				
	4	•						Í						<u> </u>
		T						l						
<u>nan prometo a 2017-a de anti-3pe 2 april (4 si − ) a l'Assama en aŭ (pel p - , p</u>			1					) 						
i	<b></b>							1						
and and the second s					5	all and a stream of a life of a land life of the state of							[	
	1		1		1	L			<u> </u>	() 	Land Contractor	Lannaaneessa	Lain a straining a the	Lane. Sec.

I mereby centify may the appresimation is true to the best of my knowledge.

(Sometire and Tille)

Return its' Pa'm Rearts County

Additional Sheets May Be Used As Necessary

Firms may be cortified as an SBE and/or an M/WBE. If firms are cortified as both an SBE and M/WBE, the dollar NOTE: smount will not be counted twice.

Revised \$15.11

### Schedule 3(A) PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ACTIVITY REPORT

		APPLICATION #	<u>.</u>
		REPORTING PERIOD:	
Prim	e Consultant Address:		<b>Landon</b> es de
City/	State:	Zip	1
Con	lact Person:	Zip	
Con	tract Name:	Managen (market)en men men men men men men men men men m	
Cont	tract Tem:	Contract \$ Amount	1
Tota	Percentage performed by 1	Contract \$ Amount he Prime's Firm:	
Tota	# of Sub-Consuffants:	SBE-MANBE Subs	
Serv	ice Type: Architectural	SBE-MANBÉ Subs Engineering Panning	
ODE	H (Specity)		
Have	e Sub-Consultants complete	d work for this application? Yes	
No			
Note	e: If yes, complete below:		
		SUB-CONSULTANTS	
			at i
<b>,</b>			 
	Estimated Start Tane:	Contract Amount:	
	SCOPE OF WORK:		<u>!</u>
	Percentage/Hrs Complete	d Amount Paid To Date	
2.		·	
	Address//Tel:		; 
	Estimated Start Tane:	Contract Amount	
	SCOPE OF WORK:		<u>.</u>
	Percentage/Hrs Complete	d: Amount Pold To Date	
З.	Fimi's Name:		
	Address Tor		
	Estimated Start Time	Contract Amount	1
	SCOPE OF WORK:		
		t Amount Paid To Date	}
		and person and the second s	Į
			1. 1.

I certify that the above is true to the best of my knowledge

2

Signature/Trice

### SCHEDULE 4 - SBE-M/WBE PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

The Prime Contractor is to submit Schedule 4 to reflect actual payments made to the SBE-My request signature from in SBE-M/WBE Subcontra Subcontractor. The SBE-M/WBE Subcontractor is received a payment from the Prime Contractor. Subcontractor payment.	WHE Subcontractor. The actor unless it has made a not to complete and a	a Prime Contu de a payment sign this for	tactor is not to to the SHE-M/WHE The unless it has
This is to certify that			received
sec.	or M/WBE Subcontractor	म् धिर्णात् )	
(Montbly) or (Final) payment of \$			
On from			
Wi BD IIII	(Prime Contra		
For labor and/or materials used on		t	(Work Order)
	(Project Name)		(Work Order)
DEPT.: PROJECT NO.:			
FRIME CONTRACTOR VENDOR CODE:			
:			
SEE OF M/WHE SUBCONTRACTOR VENDOR CODE:			
y y marine manager en a sugar en a sugar ser a sugar	1995 - Santa Albanda ang ang ang atao a		ba a sha a sha a sha
If the SRE Subcontractor intends to disburge Subcontractor for labor provided on this pro		he following	information:
	998998 /v85		ann an the second s
(Signature of Subcontractor)	(Print Name & Title Subcontractor)	of Person e	xecuting on behalf of
STATE OF FLORIDA			
Swors to and subscribed bafore me this	day ంక్	*	20
₽X:			
•	Notary Public, Stat	s of Florida	
	-		•
	Pfint, Type or Stam	p Commission	ed Name of Notary
Personally Known OR Froduced Identifies	ation Type of Ider	tification _	yngeethe maar rystege sitt en semennen verstegetegeneen i seere de PS-stere
Rev. 2			Lest updated: 12/6/201

### Exhibit A - Plan Document

A "Summary Plan Document" or "Plan Booklet" that includes Plan Benefits and Members' rights and responsibilities under the Plan will be provided by Employer to CHLIC. CHLIC agrees to draft the SPD or Plan Booklet based upon Employers direction and will provide the draft to Employer for its review and approval. Upon review and approval by Employer, the Employer represent that the "SPD" or Plan Booklet shall become the official Plan Booklet. CHLIC will use the finalized Plan Booklet to administer the plan. The Plan Booklet will be reviewed and updated no less than annually.

If Employer has not provided CHLIC with a copy of its finalized Plan Booklet by the time this Agreement is effective, CHLIC will administer the Plan in accordance with the medical management and claims administration policies and procedures and/or practices then applicable to its own health insurance business and the definitions and other language contained in the draft version of the Plan Booklet provided by CHLIC to Employer. CHLIC will continue to administer the Plan in this manner until CHLIC receives the finalized Plan Booklet and follows its preparation and review process. After that time CHLIC will use the finalized Plan Booklet to administer the plan.

#### 10/05/2011

	Products excluding Health Savings Account	
1.	Furnishing CHLIC's standard Bank Account activity data reports to Employer as and when agreed upon. CHLIC's administration of the Plan does not include performing obligations, if any, under state escheat or unclaimed property laws. It is Employer's responsibility to determine the extent to which these laws may apply to the Plan and to comply with such laws.	All Products
2.	Report to Employer the claim payment information required in connection with Section 6041 of the Internal Revenue Code.	All Products
3.	If Employer has elected, pursuant to section 63 of the New York Health Care Reform Act of 1996 (section 2807-t of the Public Health Law) ("the Act"), to pay the assessment on covered lives set forth in section 63 and has consented to the conditions set forth in section 63, CHLIC shall file such forms and pay such assessment on covered lives on behalf of Employer through the Bank Account to the extent set forth in section 63. Such obligation shall end immediately upon Employer's failure to provide any information required by CHLIC to fulfill this obligation, the failure to comply with any requirement imposed upon Employer pursuant to the Act or the failure of Employer to properly fund the Bank Account.	All Products (excluding *Vision and **Dental)
	CHLIC shall file applicable forms and pay assessments/surcharge based on covered lives on behalf of Employer in accordance with and as required by other applicable state law and regulations including:	
	New Hampshire Health Plan (High Risk Pool) New Hampshire Small Employer Health Reinsurance Pool New Hampshire Vaccine Association Vermont Vaccine Purchasing Program(*) (**)	
	CHLIC shall file applicable forms and pay assessments/surcharge based on claims on behalf of Employer in accordance with and as required by other applicable state law and regulations including:	
	Louisiana High Risk Health Insurance Association Fund Maine Dirigo Health Reform Act(*) Massachusetts Uncompensated Care Trust Fund(*) Vermont Health Care IT Fund	

Exhibit B – Services

	Products <u>excluding</u> Health Savings Account	
1.	Calculate benefits, check and/or electronic payments disbursed from Employer's Bank Account. Bank Account payments will appear in Employer's standard Bank Account activity data reports.	All Products
2.	Prepare and make available CHLIC's standard claim forms.	All Products
3.	Investigate claims, as necessary, by CHLIC's Special Investigations Unit.	All Products
4.	Discuss claims, when appropriate, with providers of health services.	All Products
5.	Perform internal audits of Plan Benefit payments on a random sample basis.	All Products
6.	Claim control procedures reported annually in Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) No. 16 Report (SAS70 successor report).	All Products (excluding Vision)
7.	Respond to Insurance Department complaints.	All Products
· 8.	the billing and the area and the and the data in the billing belling belling belling belling.	All Products
9.	Member Explanation of Benefit ("EOB") statements including, when applicable, notice of denied claims, denial reason(s) and appeal rights.	All Products
10.	Verify enrollment and eligibility using Member information submitted by Employer and/or its authorized agent.	All Products
	Medical Only	
1.	CHLIC's standard enrollment forms are prepared and delivered to Employer for distribution to individuals eligible to enroll in the Plan.	All Medical Products
2.	CHLIC's standard ID card with toll-free telephone number are prepared and mailed directly to Members.	All Medical Products
3.	Administration of subrogation/conditional Claim Payment (terms described in Exhibit E).	All Medical Products
	Pharmacy Only	
1.	CHLIC's standard ID cards with toll-free telephone number are prepared and mailed directly to Members.	All Pharmacy Products
2.	Pharmacy claims are adjudicated typically on-line at time of service without access to information on other coverage, and therefore coordination of benefits (COB) for pharmacy claims does not occur. Claims for Plan Benefits will be paid regardless of coverage under another plan.	All Pharmacy Products
3.	CHLIC's standard drug utilization review services.	All Pharmacy Products
4.	CHLIC may receive and retain payments under contracts with drug manufacturers with respect to utilization covered under the Employer's medical benefit for the manufacturer's specialty drugs, which are drugs that typically are injected or infused and derived from living cells; target an underlying rare, chronic or costly condition; and/or require restricted access and/or close monitoring. If CHLIC enters into any such contracts, it does so on its own behalf, and not as agent of the Employer or the Plan.	All Pharmacy Products

10/05/2011

,

10.00

.

•

· .	Products excluding Health Savings Account	
	Prepare and deliver Member benefit booklets to Employer.	All Products
	UNDERWRITING SERVICES	
1.	5500 Schedule C reporting.	All Products
2.	5500 Schedule A or Annual Reconciliation Disclosure reporting (when applicable)	All Products
3.	CHLIC's standard Underwriting services: a) benefit design analysis-b) projected cost analysis.	All Products
	HIPAA INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS	
	Products excluding Health Savings Account	
	Handling of requests from Members for access to, amendment and accounting of protected health information, and requests for restrictions and alternative communications as required under federal HIPAA law and regulations, as set out in this Agreement and its Exhibits.	All Products
	COST CONTAINMENT	
1.	Maximum reimbursable charge determinations of non-Participating Provider charges for covered services.	All Medical Products (with out-of-network benefits)
2.	CHLIC's standard cost containment controls: Application of non-duplication and coordination of benefits rules and coordination with Medicaid.	All Medical Products
3.	Delivery of information, as necessary, regarding standard application of non-duplication or coordination of benefits.	All Medical Products
4.	Review of medical bills in accordance with CHLIC's then current Medical Bill Review program.	All Medical Products
5.	Network Savings Program, a national vendor network that provides discounted rates when a Member accesses care through a Network Savings Program contracted provider.	All Medical Products
6.	Annual reporting of CHLIC's standard cost containment results upon Employer's request.	All Medical Products
7.	Pharmacy Vendor Recoveries (when implemented).	All Pharmacy Products
	CUSTOMER REPORTING	
1.	Summary reports of medical, dental and pharmacy cost and utilization experience available through CIGNA web site.	All Medical and Pharmacy Products
2.	CHLIC's standard pharmacy utilization reports.	Pharmacy Product Only
3.	Claim Reporting: CHLIC will provide its standard reports and information based upon paid claim data only. CHLIC will not provide information on incurred-but-not reported claims, projected claims, pre-certifications of coverage, case management information or information on a Member's prognosis or course of treatment. Stop Loss Reporting is an optional service provided at an additional fee to Employers who have stop loss through another entity other than CHLIC. CHLIC will provide its standard reporting only after the stop loss	All Medical Products
	carrier and Employer have executed CHLIC's standard Hold Harmless/Confidentiality Agreement.	
4.	CIGNA Behavioral Health Reporting will be provided.	All Products

.

10/05/2011

.

	MEMBER EXTERNAL REVIEW PROGRAM	
	CHLIC contracts with three (3) independent review organizations that meet the Patient Protection and	All Medical Products
	Affordable Care Act (PPACA) external review requirements. Members may voluntarily appeal to a selected	
	external independent review organization. If Employer has chosen not to participate in this program, the	
	Employer may be responsible for making other arrangements to meet the Patient Protection and Affordable	
. The second	Care Act (PPACA) external review requirements.	1
	MEDICAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES	
	CHLIC provides integrated medical management that includes (depending upon the terms of the Plan) the	
	following core services.	
1.	Pre-Admission Certification and Continued Stay Review (PAC/CSR) services to certify coverage of acute and	All Medical Products
	sub-acute inpatient admissions/stays or provides guidance to appropriate alternative settings. Administered in	
	accordance with CHLIC's then applicable medical management and claims administration policies, practices	
	and procedures.	
2.	Case Management and Retrospective Review of Inpatient Care, a service designed to provide assistance to a	All Medical Products
	Member who is at risk of developing medical complexities or for whom a health incident has precipitated a	
	need for rehabilitation or additional health care support.	
3.	Assisting providers with resources and tools to enable them to-develop Long Term Treatment Plans in the	All Medical Products
	management of chronic or catastrophic cases.	
4.	The CIGNA HealthCare Healthy Babies $^{(\! 8\!)}$ Program, a no-cost to Member prenatal program that provides	All Medical Products
	education and support for a healthy pregnancy and healthy baby.	
5.	HealthCare Cost and Quality tools on myCIGNA.com	All Medical Products
6.	A panel of physicians and other clinicians to assess the safety and effectiveness of new and emerging medical	All Medical Products
	technologies. The panel meets monthly to review and update coverage policies.	An incurcar i roudets
7.	The CIGNA HealthCare 24-Hour Health Information Line <sup>SM</sup> , a service that provides 24 hour toll free access to	All Medical Products
	registered nurses and an extensive audio health information library.	An incultar i routets
8.	CIGNA <i>LifeSOURCE</i> Transplant Network® contracts with over five-hundred (500) transplant programs at	All Medical Products
	more than one-hundred thirty (130) independent transplant facilities. We provide access to solid organ and	Tim medical Froducts
•	bone marrow/stem cell transplantation while improving cost containment and reducing financial risk.	
9.	A Health Education Program that delivers mailings to Members with certain conditions.	All Medical Products
,		Except Comprehensive an
		Indemnity
10.	If behavioral health services are provided/arranged by CIGNA Behavioral Health (CBH), CBH provides	
10,		PPO and All Network
	utilization review and case management for both inpatient and outpatient, in-network behavioral health services.	Products Only

11.	Implementing clinical quality measurements, managing data, tracking and validating performance and initiating continuous quality improvement.	All Medical Products Except Comprehensive and Indemnity
12.	Transition of care services to allow Members with defined conditions to continue treatment with non- Participating Providers after enrollment for continued uninterrupted care for a limited time.	All Medical Products Except Comprehensive and Indemnity
13.	Focused utilization management of outpatient procedures and identification of appropriate alternatives. Administered in accordance with CHLIC's then applicable medical management and claims administration policies, practices and procedures.	All Medical Products with PHS Plus
	A DEMONSTRATION TO A CHARTEN TO SEED VIC IS	T
1.	CHLIC, and/or its affiliates shall: Provide or arrange access to the applicable network of Participating Providers to furnish health care services/products to Members at negotiated rates and methods of reimbursement (e.g. fee-for service, capitation, per diem charges, incentive bonuses, case rates, withholds etc.). The amount and type of negotiated reimbursement may vary depending upon the type of plan. For example, a hospital may accept less for patients enrolled in certain types of plans than others;	All Medical Products
2.	Credential and re-credential Participating Providers in accordance with CHLIC's credentialing requirements and ensure that third-party network vendors credential/re-credential Participating Providers in accordance with CHLIC's requirements;	All Medical Products
3.	Review Participating Provider compliance with protocols and procedures for quality, Participant satisfaction,	All Medical Products
	and grievance resolution; Facilitate the identification of Participating Providers by Members; and	All Medical Products
4.	Dedicated toll-free telephone line for Member and Provider calls to CHLIC Service Centers.	All Medical Products

# BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

CHLIC has contracted with an affiliate, CIGNA Behavioral Health ("CBH"), to provide or arrange for the provision of managed in-network behavioral health services, CBH is a Participating Provider, and is reimbursed primarily on a monthly fixed fee basis. This fixed fee for CBH services will be paid as claims and will appear in Employer's monthly reporting and on financial documents as capitation. Such payments will be at the relevant monthly rates then in effect. The monthly rates paid to CBH vary depending on geographic location of Members and on benefit design, and may be subject to change. The rates will be made available upon request. The fixed fee also includes lifestyle management programs and a cognitive behavioral modification program. Behavioral claims from a client specific network are not included in the behavioral monthly fixed fee and will be paid from the Bank Account. In some states, payment for behavioral health services must be paid on a fee-for-service basis. In these states, fee-for-service payments for behavioral health	PPO (Non-CA/NC Members) & All Network Products
services must be paid on a fee-for-service basis. In these states, fee-for-service payments for behavioral health services and the CBH administrative fee (including the lifestyle management programs and a cognitive behavioral modification program) will be paid from the Bank Account as claims and will appear in Employer's monthly reporting. CHLIC will commit to a thirty (30) day notice for CBA rates.	

<u>, 1997 - 2005 - 1997 - 1997</u> 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -	CIGNA STAFF MODEL HEALTHPLAN SERVICES The CIGNA HealthCare of Arizona, Inc. staff model ("Cigna Medical Group") is a Participating Provider located in metropolitan Phoenix, Arizona. Plan Participants may at some time receive treatment from a Cigna Medical Group ("CMG") facility or provider even if they do not reside in Arizona (as when traveling). Participants utilizing the IPA network will access certain specialty and/or ancillary services (including	All Medical Products
	laboratory and urgent care services) through the CMG system. Lab services are not provided by CMG for Participants in PPO or EPO plans.	
	Except as provided below, for services provided to Participants, CMG is paid on a fee schedule basis at the rates in effect at the time of service (as may be amended from time to time). A representative CMG fee schedule of routinely performed services is attached. A copy of the full fee schedule is available on request and mutually agreed Non Disclosure Agreement ("NDA").	
. •	If the Plan requires Participants to select a primary care physician (PCP), Phoenix area Participants who do not select a PCP during open enrollment are assigned to a CMG PCP. CMG is paid a monthly primary care capitation amount for those Phoenix area Participants who select or are assigned to a CMG PCP. Charges will appear in Employer's standard Bank Account activity data reports at the rates in effect at the time of payment. Primary care capitation charges are age/sex adjusted and may be amended from time to time. A primary care capitation rate grid and a list of the services included in the capitation are available upon request and mutually agreed Non Disclosure Agreement ("NDA").	
	Primary care services rendered to Participants in Open Access Plans that do not provide for PCP assignment are charged on a fee schedule basis, as described above.	

#### CIGNA HEALTHCARE OF ARIZONA - CIGNA MEDICAL GROUP (CMG) REPRESENTATIVE FEE SCHEDULE OF ROUTINELY PERFORMED MEDICAL SERVICES EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2011

(Applicable to all PPO and EPO Products)

PT Service Code	Service Description	Charge
•	Sigmoidoscopy, flexible; Diagnostic (combined rate, includes	
45330	facility fee \$485.00)	\$557.97
45378	Diagnostic Colonoscopy (combined rate, includes facility fee	
	\$650)	\$907.7
71020	Chest X-Ray, Pa & Lat	\$30.38
74000	Abdomen X-Ray (Kub)	\$24.5
77057	Mammogram, Screening (Bilateral)	\$78.64
92014	Eye Exam & Treatment	\$109.3
92567	Tympanometry	\$15.6
93000	Electrocardiogram, Complete	\$21.8
94760	Oximetry Single Determination	\$2.4
95115	Allergy Injection, Single	\$9.6
95117	Allergy Injection, Multiple	\$11.8
99211	Office Visit, Est Min (Md Or Non-Md)	\$19.2
99212	Office Visit, Est Prob Focused	\$39.1
99213	Office Visit, Est Exp Prob Foc	\$65.80
99214	Office Visit, Est Detailed	\$98.5
99231	Subsequent Hospital Care	\$38.20
99242	Office Consult, Exp Prob Focused, 30 Minutes	\$92.1
99395	Well Exam, Est, 18-39 Years	\$94.20
99396	Well Exam, Est, 40-64 Years	\$102.94

The Urgent Care case rate excluding radiology and laboratory services is \$115.

The CMG CareToday (CMG low acuity clinics) visit rate is \$59. Lab tests performed at the CMG CareToday facilities are \$10 per service. A complete CMG CareToday fee schedule is available on request.

ASC (Ambulatory surgical center) grouper rates based on 2006 Medicare for facility component of outpatient surgery services:

Group 1 - \$485 Group 2 - \$650 Group 3 - \$740 Group 4 - \$900 Group 5 - \$950 Group 6 - \$1100 Group 7 - \$1420 Group 8 - \$1400 Group 9 - \$1200 Unlisted - \$740

CMG pharmacy fee schedule:

10/05/2011

Brand Name: AWP – 10.56% + \$2.75 dispensing fee Generic: AWP – 35% + \$2.75 dispensing fee

.

Plan charges are reduced by any applicable copayment, coinsurance and/or deductible for service. Services not identified by CPT code or codes without established RVUs are billed at the 50<sup>th</sup> Percentile of the Arizona Regional Medicode Schedule.

10/05/2011

### CIGNA HEALTHCARE OF ARIZONA - CIGNA MEDICAL GROUP (CMG) REPRESENTATIVE FEESCHEDULE OF ROUTINELY PERFORMED MEDICAL SERVICES EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2011

(Applicable to all Network and Network POS Products)

<b>CPT Service Code</b>	Service Description	Charge
45330	Sigmoidoscopy, flexible; Diagnostic (combined rate, includes facility fee \$485)	\$545.81
45378	Diagnostic Colonoscopy (combined rate, includes facility fee \$650)	\$864.79
71020	Chest X-Ray, Pa & Lat	\$44.05
74000	Abdomen X-Ray (Kub)	\$35.63
77057	Mammogram, Screening (Bilateral)	\$114.03
80053	Comprehensive Metabolic Panel	\$21.95
80061	Cardiac Risk	\$27.83
82565	Creatinine; Blood	\$10.64
82947	Glucose, Serum	\$8.15
84075	Phosphatase, Alkaline,Blood	\$10.74
84443	Tsh, Assay	\$34.89
84450	Sgot (Ast) Transaminase	\$10.74
84520	Bun (Urea Nitrogen)Assay	\$8.19
85025	CBC and Differential	\$13.33
87086	Culture, Urine, Colony Ct	\$16.78
88164	Cytopathology, Slides	\$21.94
88305	Surg Path, Gross and Micro	\$147.76
92014	Eye Exam & Treatment	\$158.56
92567	Tympanometry	\$24.32
93000	Electrocardiogram, Complete	\$28.81
94760	Oximetry Single Determination	\$3.58
95115	Allergy Injection, Single	\$14.05
95117	Allergy Injection, Multiple	\$17.19
99211	Office Visit, Est Min (Md Or Non-Md)	\$27.86
99212	Office Visit, Est Prob Focused	\$58.82
99213	Office Visit, Est Exp Prob Foc	\$95.41
99214	Office Visit, Est Detailed	\$142.95
99231	Subsequent Hospital Care	\$55.48
99242	Office Consult, Exp Prob Focused, 30 Minutes	\$133.62
99395	Well Exam, Est, 18-39 Years	\$136.59
99396	Well Exam, Est, 40-64 Years	\$149.26

10/05/2011

The Urgent Care case rate excluding radiology and laboratory services is \$115.

The CMG CareToday (CMG low acuity clinics) visit rate is \$59. Lab tests performed at the CMG CareToday facilities are \$10 per service. A complete CMG CareToday fee schedule is available on request.

ASC (Ambulatory surgical center) grouper rates based on 2006 Medicare for facility component of outpatient surgery services:

Group 1 - \$485 Group 2 - \$650 Group 3 - \$743 Group 4 - \$918 Group 5 - \$1044 Group 6 - \$1202 Group 7 - \$1449 Group 8 - \$1416 Group 9 - \$1950 Unlisted - \$743

CMG pharmacy fee schedule:

Brand Name: AWP – 10.56% + \$2.75 dispensing fee Generic: AWP – 35% + \$2.75 dispensing fee

Plan charges are reduced by any applicable copayment, coinsurance and/or deductible for service. Services not identified by CPT code or codes without established RVUs are billed at the 50<sup>th</sup> Percentile of the Arizona Regional Medicode Schedule.

10/05/2011

### Exhibit C – Claim Audit Agreement (Sample)

- A. WHEREAS, CHLIC ("CHLIC") desires to cooperate with requests by \_\_\_\_\_ (" Employer") to permit an audit for the purposes set forth below; and
- B. WHEREAS, \_\_\_\_\_("Auditor") has been retained by Employer for the purpose of performing an audit ("Audit") of claims administered by CHLIC.
- C. WHEREAS, the Auditor and the Employer recognize CHLIC's legitimate interests in maintaining the confidentiality of its claim information, protecting its business reputation, avoiding unnecessary disruption of its claim administration, and protecting itself from legal liability;

NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the premises and the mutual promises contained herein, CHLIC, the Employer and the Auditor hereby agree as follows:

#### 1. <u>Audit Specifications</u>

The Auditor will specify to CHLIC in writing at least forty-five (45) days prior to the commencement of the Audit the following "Audit Specifications":

- a. the name, title and professional qualifications of individual Auditors;
- b. the Claim Office locations, if any, to be audited;
- c. the Audit objectives;
- d. the scope of the Audit (time period, lines of coverage and number of claims);
- e. the process by which claims will be selected for audit;
- f. the records/information required by the Auditor for purposes of the Audit; and
- g. the length of time contemplated as necessary to complete the Audit.

#### 2. <u>Review of Specifications</u>

CHLIC will have the right to review the Audit Specifications and to require any changes in, or conditions on, the Audit Specifications which may be necessary to protect CHLIC's legal and business interests identified in paragraph C above.

#### 3. Access to Information

CHLIC will make the records/information called for in the Audit Specifications available to the Auditor at a mutually acceptable time and place.

#### 4. <u>Audit Report</u>

The Auditor will provide CHLIC with a true copy of the Audit's findings, as well as of the Audit Report, if any, that is submitted to the Employer. Such copies will be provided to CHLIC at the same time that the Audit findings and the Audit Report are submitted to the Employer.

#### 5. <u>Comment on Audit Report</u>

CHLIC reserves the right to provide the Auditor and the Employer with its comments on the findings and, if applicable, the Audit Report.

#### 6. Confidentiality

The Auditor understands that CHLIC is permitting the Auditor to review the claim records/information solely for purposes of the Audit. Accordingly, the Auditor will ensure that all information pertaining to individual claimants will be kept confidential in accordance with all Applicable Laws and/or regulations. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Auditor specifically agrees to adhere to the following conditions:

- a. The Auditor shall not make photocopies or remove any of the claim records/information without the express written consent of CHLIC;
- b. The Auditor agrees that its Audit Report or any other summary prepared in connection with the Audit shall contain no individually identifiable information.

#### 7. <u>Restricted Use of the Audit Information</u>

With respect to persons other than the Employer, the Auditor will hold and treat information obtained from CHLIC during the Audit with the same degree and standard of confidentiality owed by the Auditor to its clients in accordance with all applicable legal and professional standards. The Auditor shall not, without the express written consent of CHLIC executed by an officer of CHLIC, disclose in any manner whatsoever, the results, conclusions, reports or information of whatever nature which it acquires or prepares in connection with the Audit to any party other than the Employer except as required by Applicable Law. The Employer and Auditor agree to indemnify and to hold harmless CHLIC for any and all claims, costs, expenses and damages which may result from any breaches of the Auditor's obligations under paragraphs 6 and 7 of this Agreement or from CHLIC's provision of information to the Auditor. The Employer authorizes CHLIC to provide to the designated Auditor the necessary information to perform the audit in a manner consistent with all Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA"), Privacy Standards and in compliance with the signed Business Associate Agreement ("BAA").

#### 8. <u>Termination</u>

CHLIC may terminate this agreement with prior written notice. The obligations set forth in Sections 4 through 7 shall survive termination of the Agreement.

CIGNA Health and Life Insurance Company
By: <u>TO BE SIGNED AT TIME OF AUDIT</u> Duly Authorized
Print Name:
Title:
Date:
Employer:
By: <u>TO BE SIGNED AT TIME OF AUDIT</u> Duly Authorized
Print Name:
Title:
Date:
Auditor:
By: <u>TO BE SIGNED AT TIME OF AUDIT</u> Duly Authorized
Print Name:
Title:
Date:

#### Exhibit D – Privacy Addendum ("Business Associate Agreement")

#### I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1. <u>Effect</u>. As of the Effective Date, the terms and provisions of this Addendum are incorporated in and shall supersede any conflicting or inconsistent terms and provisions of (as applicable) the Administrative Services Only Agreement and/or Flexible Spending Account or Reimbursement Accounts Administrative Services Agreement to which this Addendum is attached, including all exhibits or other attachments to, and all documents incorporated by reference in, any such applicable agreements (individually and collectively any such applicable agreements are referred to as the "Agreement"). This Addendum sets out terms and provisions relating to the use and disclosure of Protected Health Information ("PHI") without written authorization from the Individual.

Section 2. <u>Amendment to Comply with Law</u>. CHLIC, Employer (also referred to as "Plan Sponsor") and the group health plan that is the subject of the Agreement (also referred to as the "Plan") agree to amend this Addendum to the extent necessary to allow either the Plan or CHLIC to comply with Applicable Laws and regulations including, but not limited to, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and its implementing Administrative Simplification regulations (45 C.F.R. Parts 142, 160, 162 and 164) ("HIPAA"), also known as the HIPAA Standards for Electronic Transactions, the HIPAA Security Standards, and the HIPAA Privacy Rule; the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, which was included in the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (P.L. 111-5 ("ARRA")) and its implementing regulations and guidance ("HITECH").

Section 3. <u>Definitions</u>. Certain capitalized terms used in this Addendum are defined in Article V. Terms used in this Addendum shall have the meanings ascribed to them by HIPAA and HITECH including their respective implementing regulations and guidance. If the meaning of any term defined herein is changed by regulatory or legislative amendment, then this Addendum will be modified automatically to correspond to the amended definition. All capitalized terms used herein that are not otherwise defined have the meanings described in HIPAA and HITECH. A reference in this Addendum to a section in the HIPAA Privacy Rule, HIPAA Security Rule, or HITECH means the section then in effect, as amended.

#### **II. OBLIGATIONS OF CHLIC**

Section 1. Use and Disclosure of PHI. CHLIC may use and disclose PHI only if such use or disclosure is permitted or required by the HIPAA Privacy Rule, including the applicable provisions of 45 C.F.R. §164.504(e), is required to satisfy its obligations or is permitted under the Agreement, and/or is permitted or required by law, but shall not otherwise use or disclose any PHI. CHLIC shall not use or disclose, and shall ensure that its directors, officers and employees do not use or disclose, PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the HIPAA Privacy Rule or HITECH if done by the Plan, except that CHLIC may use and disclose PHI as permitted under the HIPAA Privacy Rule (i) for the proper management and administration of CHLIC, (ii) to carry out the legal responsibilities of CHLIC or (iii) to provide Data Aggregation services relating to the health care operations of the Plan if such services are required under the Agreement.

10/05/2011

Section 2. <u>Receiving Remuneration in Exchange for PHI Prohibited</u>. Effective for exchanges occurring on or after the date that is six (6) months after the date of the promulgation of final regulations by the Secretary implementing Section 13405(d) of HITECH, CHLIC shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for any PHI of an Individual, unless the Plan obtained from the Individual, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. §164.508, a valid authorization that, in accordance with such section, specifies whether the PHI can be further exchanged for remuneration by the entity receiving PHI of that Individual, unless the purpose of the exchange is:

- (A) For public health activities (as described in 45 C.F.R. §164.512(b));
- (B) For research (as described in 45 C.F.R. §§164.501 and 164.512(i)) and the price charged reflects the costs of preparation and transmittal of the data for such purpose;
- (C) For the treatment of the Individual, subject to any applicable regulation preventing PHI from inappropriate access, use, or disclosure;
- (D) The health care operation specifically described in the definition of health care operations in 45 C.F.R. §164.501(6)(iv);
- (E) For remuneration provided by the Plan to CHLIC for activities involving the exchange of PHI that CHLIC undertakes on behalf of and at the request of the Plan pursuant to the Agreement and this Addendum;
- (F) To provide an Individual with a copy of his or her PHI pursuant to 45 C.F.R. §164.524; or
- (G) Otherwise determined by regulations of the Secretary to be similarly necessary and appropriate as the exceptions described in subsections (A) through (F), above.

Section 3. Limited Data Set or Minimum Necessary Standard and Determination. CHLIC shall, to the extent practicable, limit its use, disclosure, or request of Individuals' PHI to the Limited Data Set (as defined in 45 C.F.R. §164.514(e)(2)) or, if needed by CHLIC, to the minimum necessary amount of Individuals' PHI to accomplish the intended purpose of such use, disclosure, or request and to perform its obligations under the underlying Agreement and this Addendum. CHLIC shall determine what constitutes the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of such disclosure. CHLIC's obligations under this Section 3 shall be subject to modification to comply with future guidance to be issued by the Secretary.

Section 4. <u>Security Standards</u>. As required by HITECH Section 13401(a), CHLIC shall comply with the administrative, physical, and technical safeguards and standards set out in 45 C.F.R. §164.308, §164.310, and §164.312, and with the policies and procedures and documentation requirements set out in 45 C.F.R. §164.316. On and after the effective date of final regulations issued by the Secretary requiring CHLIC's compliance with 45 C.F.R. §164.314, CHLIC shall comply with the organizational requirements set forth at 45 C.F.R. §164.314, to the extent applicable.

Section 5. Protection of Electronic PHI. With respect to Electronic PHI, CHLIC shall:

- (A) Implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the Electronic PHI that CHLIC creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the Plan as required by the Security Standards;
- (B) Ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom CHLIC provides such information agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect it; and,
- (C) Report to the Plan any Security Incident of which it becomes aware.

Section 6. <u>Reporting of Violations</u>. CHLIC shall report to the Plan any use or disclosure of PHI not provided for by this Addendum of which it becomes aware. CHLIC agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect from a use or disclosure of PHI in violation of this Addendum of which it is aware.

Section 7. <u>Security Breach Notification</u>. CHLIC will notify the Plan of a Breach without unreasonable delay. This notification will include, to the extent known:

- i. the names of the individuals whose PHI was involved in the Breach;
- ii. the circumstances surrounding the Breach;
- iii. the date of the Breach and the date of its discovery;
- iv. the information Breached;
- v. any steps the impacted individuals should take to protect themselves;
- vi. the steps CHLIC is taking to investigate the Breach, mitigate losses, and protect against future Breaches; and,
- vii. a contact person who can provide additional information about the Breach.

For purposes of discovery and reporting of Breaches, CHLIC is not the agent of the Plan or the Employer (as "agent" is defined under common law). CHLIC will investigate Breaches, assess their impact under applicable state and federal law, including HITECH, and make a recommendation to the Plan has to whether notification is required pursuant to 45 C.F.R. §§164.404-408 and/or applicable state breach notification laws. With the Plan's prior approval, CHLIC will issue notices to such individuals, state and federal agencies - including the Department of Health and Human Services, and/or the media as the Plan is required to notify pursuant to, and in accordance with the requirements of Applicable Law (including 45 C.F.R. §§164.404-408). CHLIC will pay the costs of issuing notices required by law and other remediation and mitigation which, in CHLIC's discretion, are appropriate and necessary to address the Breach. CHLIC will not be required to issue notifications that are not mandated by Applicable Law. CHLIC shall provide the Plan with information necessary for the Plan to fulfill its obligation to report Breaches affecting fewer than 500 Individuals to the Secretary as required by C.F.R. §164.408(c).

Section 8. <u>Disclosures to and Agreements by Third Parties</u>. CHLIC shall ensure that each agent and subcontractor to whom it provides PHI agrees to the same restrictions and conditions with respect to such PHI that apply to CHLIC pursuant to this Addendum.

Section 9. <u>Access to PHI</u>. CHLIC shall provide an Individual with access to such Individual's PHI contained in a Designated Record Set in response to such Individual's request in the manner and time required in 45 C.F.R. §164.524.

Section 10. <u>Availability of PHI for Amendment</u>. CHLIC shall respond to a request by an Individual for amendment to such Individual's PHI contained in a Designated Record Set in the manner and time required in 45 C.F.R. §164.526, except that the Plan shall handle any requests for amendment of PHI originated by the Plan, Plan Sponsor or the Plan's other business associates, such as enrollment information.

Section 11. Modifications to Individual Rights and Accounting of Disclosures. CHLIC shall comply with, and shall assist the Plan in complying with, responding to Individuals' requests to restrict the uses and disclosures of their PHI under 45 C.F.R. §164.522. This shall include complying with valid requests to restrict the disclosure of certain PHI in accordance with Section 13405(A) of the HITECH Act. As required by HITECH, CHLIC shall provide Individuals with access to certain PHI in electronic form. CHLIC shall provide an accounting of disclosures of PHI to an Individual who requests such accounting in the manner and time required in 45 C.F.R. §164.528.

Section 12. <u>Requests for Privacy Protection</u>. CHLIC shall handle requests by an Individual for privacy protection for such Individual's PHI pursuant to the requirements of 45 C.F.R. §164.522.

Section 13. <u>Processes and Procedures</u>. In carrying out its duties set forth in Article II, Sections 9 – 12, above, CHLIC will implement the Standard Business Associate Processes and Procedures (the "Processes and Procedures") attached hereto for requests from Individuals, including the requirement that requests be made in writing, the creation of forms for use by Individuals in making such requests, and the setting of time periods for the Plan to forward to CHLIC any such requests made directly to the Plan or Plan Sponsor. In addition, CHLIC will implement the Processes and Procedures relating to disclosure of PHI to Plan Sponsor or designated third parties.

Section 14. <u>Availability of Books and Records</u>. CHLIC hereby agrees to make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by CHLIC on behalf of the Plan, available to the Secretary for purposes of determining the Plan's compliance with the Privacy Rule.

#### III. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT WITH CHLIC

Section 1. <u>Termination Upon Breach of Provisions Applicable to PHI</u>. Any other provision of the Agreement notwithstanding, the Agreement may be terminated by the Plan upon prior written notice to CHLIC in the event that CHLIC materially breaches any obligation of this Addendum and fails to cure the breach within such reasonable time as the Plan may provide for in such notice; provided that in the event that termination of the Agreement is not feasible, in the Plan's sole discretion, the Plan shall have the right to report the breach to the Secretary.

If CHLIC knows of a pattern of activity or practice of the Plan, that constitutes a material breach or violation of the Plan's duties and obligations under this Addendum, CHLIC shall provide a reasonable period of time, as agreed upon by the parties, for the Plan to cure the material breach or violation. Provided, however, that, if the Plan does not cure the material breach or violation within such agreed upon time period, CHLIC shall terminate the Agreement, if feasible, at the end of such period.

10/05/2011

Section 2. <u>Use of PHI upon Termination</u>. The parties hereto agree that it is not feasible for CHLIC to return or destroy PHI at termination of the Agreement; therefore, the protections of this Addendum for PHI shall survive termination of the Agreement, and CHLIC shall limit any further uses and disclosures of such PHI to the purpose or purposes which make the return or destruction of such PHI infeasible.

### IV. OBLIGATION OF THE PLAN

The Plan will not request CHLIC to use or disclose PHI in any manner that would not be permissible under HIPAA or HITECH if done by the Plan.

### V. DEFINITIONS FOR USE IN THIS ADDENDUM

"Breach" means the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of Unsecured PHI which compromises the security or privacy of such information, except where an unauthorized person to whom such information is disclosed would not reasonably have been able to retain such information. A Breach does not include any unintentional acquisition, access, or use of PHI by an employee or individual acting under the authority of CHLIC if such acquisition, access, or use was made in good faith and within the course and scope of the employment or other professional relationship of such employee or individual with CHLIC; any inadvertent disclosure from an individual who is otherwise authorized to access PHI at a facility operated by CHLIC to another similarly situated individual at the same facility; and such information is not further acquired, accessed, used, or disclosed without authorization by any person.

"Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" as set forth in the Privacy Rule, limited to the enrollment, payment, claims adjudication, and case or medical management record systems maintained by CHLIC for the Plan, or used, in whole or in part, by CHLIC or the Plan to make decisions about Individuals.

"Effective Date" shall mean the earliest date by which the Plan is required to have executed a Business Associate Agreement with CHLIC pursuant to the requirements of Applicable Law.

"Electronic Protected Health Information" shall mean PHI that is transmitted by or maintained in electronic media as that term is defined in 45 C.F.R. §160.103.

"Limited Data Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "limited data set" as set forth in as defined in 45 C.F.R. §164.514(e)(2).

"Protected Health Information" or "PHI" shall have the same meaning as set forth at 45 C.F.R. §160.103.

"Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

"Security Incident" shall have the same meaning as the term "security incident" as set forth in 45 C.F.R. §164.304.

"Unsecured Protected Health Information" shall mean PHI that is not rendered unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals through the use of a technology or methodology specified by the Secretary in the guidance issued under Section 13402(h)(2) of ARRA.

### CIGNA Health and Life Insurance Company Standard Business Associate Processes and Procedures

These Standard Business Associate Processes and Procedures apply to each self-funded group health plan ("Plan") of an entity ("Plan Sponsor") that has entered or will enter into an Administrative Services Only Agreement, Flexible Spending Account or Reimbursement Accounts Administrative Services Agreement and/or Continuation Coverage Services Agreement (collectively, as applicable, the "Administrative Services Agreement and Life Insurance Company ("CHLIC"). The Plan and CHLIC are parties to a Business Associate Agreement/Privacy Addendum. Unless otherwise defined, capitalized terms have the meaning provided therein, or if not defined in such agreement, as defined in 45 C.F.R. parts 142, 160, 162 and 164 ("HIPAA"), also known as the HIPAA Standards for Electronic Transactions, the HIPAA Security Standards, and the HIPAA Privacy Rule and/or the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, which was included in the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (P.L. 111-5 ("ARRA")).

Section 1. Access to PHI. When an Individual requests access to PHI contained in a Designated Record Set and such request is made directly to the Plan or Plan Sponsor, the Plan shall forward the request to CHLIC within five (5) business days of such receipt. Upon receipt of such request from the Plan, or upon receipt of such a request directly from an Individual, CHLIC shall make such PHI available directly to the Individual within the time and manner required in 45 C.F.R. §164.524. The Plan delegates to CHLIC the duty to determine, on behalf of the Plan, whether to deny access to PHI requested by an Individual and the duty to provide any required notices and review in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy Rule.

## Section 2. Availability of PHI for Amendment.

- (a) When an Individual requests amendment to PHI contained in a Designated Record Set, and such request is made directly to the Plan or Plan Sponsor, within five (5) business days of such receipt, the Plan shall forward such request to CHLIC for handling, except that the Plan shall retain and handle all such requests to the extent that they pertain to Individually Identifiable Health Information (such as enrollment information) originated by the Plan, Plan Sponsor, or the Plan's other business associates. CHLIC shall respond to such forwarded requests as well as to any such requests that it receives directly from Individuals as required by 45 C.F.R. §164.526, except that CHLIC shall forward to the Plan for handling any requests for amendment of PHI originated by the Plan, Plan Sponsor, or the Plan's other business associates.
- (b) With respect to those requests handled by CHLIC under subparagraph (a) above, the Plan delegates to CHLIC the duty to determine, on behalf of the Plan, whether to deny a request for amendment of PHI and the duty to provide any required notices and review as well as, in the case of its determination to grant such a request, the duty to make any amendments in accordance with the terms of the Privacy Rule. In all other instances, the Plan retains all responsibility for handling such requests, including any denials, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy Rule.
- (c) Whenever CHLIC is notified by the Plan that the Plan has agreed to make an amendment pursuant to a request that it handles under subparagraph (a) above, CHLIC shall incorporate any such amendments in accordance with 45 C.F.R. §164.526.

Section 3. <u>Accounting of Disclosures</u>. When an Individual requests an accounting of disclosures of PHI held by CHLIC directly to the Plan or Plan Sponsor, the Plan shall within five (5) business days of such receipt forward the request to CHLIC to handle. CHLIC shall handle such requests, and any such requests for an accounting of disclosures received directly from Individuals, in the time and manner as required in 45 C.F.R. §164.528.

Section 4. <u>Requests for Privacy Protection</u>. CHLIC shall handle Individuals' requests made to it for privacy protection for PHI in CHLIC's possession pursuant to the requirements of 45 C.F.R. §164.522. The Plan shall forward to CHLIC to handle any such requests the Plan receives from Individuals that affect PHI held by CHLIC.

Section 5. <u>General Provisions Regarding Requests</u>. CHLIC may require that requests pursuant to Sections 1 through 4 above be made in writing and may create forms for use by Individuals in making such requests. When responding to an Individual's request as provided above, CHLIC may inform the Individual that there may be other "protected health information" created or maintained by the Plan and/or the Plan's other business associates and not included in the CHLIC's response. CHLIC shall not be responsible for performing any duties described in the Business Associate Agreement with respect to any such other "protected health information." In carrying out its duties set forth herein, CHLIC may establish such additional procedures and processes for requests from Individuals as permitted by the Privacy Rule.

Section 6. <u>Disclosure of PHI to the Plan Sponsor</u>. To the extent that the fulfillment of CHLIC's obligations under the Administrative Services Agreement requires CHLIC to disclose or provide access to PHI to Plan Sponsor or any person under the control of Plan Sponsor (including third parties), CHLIC shall make such disclosure of or provide such access to PHI only as follows:

- (i) CHLIC shall disclose Summary Health Information to any employee or other person under the control of Plan Sponsor (including third parties) upon the Plan Sponsor's written request for the purpose of obtaining premium bids for the provision of health insurance or HMO coverage for the Plan or modifying, amending or terminating the Plan; and
  - (ii) If the Plan elects to provide PHI to the Plan Sponsor, CHLIC shall disclose or make available PHI, other than Summary Health Information, at the written direction of the Plan to only those employees or other persons identified in the Plan documents and under the control of Plan Sponsor solely for the purpose of carrying out the Plan administration functions that Plan Sponsor performs for the Plan. Such employees or other persons (including third parties) will be identified by the Plan in writing (by name, title, or other appropriate designation) to CHLIC as a condition of disclosure of PHI pursuant to this Section 6(ii). The Plan may modify such list from time to time by written notice to CHLIC.

Section 7. <u>Disclosures of PHI to Third Parties</u>. Upon the Plan's written request, CHLIC will provide PHI to certain designated third parties who assist in administering the Plan and who are authorized by the Plan to receive such information solely for the purpose of assisting in carrying out Plan administration functions ("Designated Third Parties"). Such parties may include, but are not limited to, third-party administrators, consultants, brokers, auditors, successor administrators or insurers, and stop-loss carriers. As a condition to providing PHI to a Designated Third Party, CHLIC may require that the Plan have a business associate agreement (within the meaning of the Privacy Rule) with such Designated Third Party.

10/05/2011

### Exhibit E - Conditional Claim/Subrogation Recovery Services

#### I. <u>Plans Without CHLIC Stop Loss Coverage</u>

If Employer has not purchased individual or aggregate stop loss coverage from CHLIC or an affiliate with respect to its self-funded employee welfare benefit plan:

- A. All conditional claim payment and/or subrogation recoveries under the Plan will be handled by the entity checked below;
  - \_\_\_\_ Employer
    - \_ An independent recovery vendor whose name and address follow:
    - \_ CHLIC and its subcontractor(s)
- B. If Employer has designated CHLIC and its subcontractors to act as its recovery agent in paragraph I.A. above, then:
  - i. Employer hereby confers upon CHLIC and its subcontractors' discretionary authority to reduce recovery amounts by as much as fifty percent (50%) of the total amount of benefits paid on Employer's behalf, and to enter into binding settlement agreements for such amounts.
  - ii. In the event a settlement offer represents a reduction greater than the percentage identified above, CHLIC and its subcontractors should seek settlement advice from:
    - Name: Title: Address: Telephone:
  - iii. All amounts reimbursed to Employer's Bank Account shall be refunded at the gross amount. CHLIC's and it subcontractors' subrogation administration fee on cases where CHLIC and its subcontractors' have retained counsel and in cases where no counsel has been retained by CHLIC and its subcontractors are both reflected in the Schedule of Financial Charges.
- C. Except where agreed to by CHLIC and Employer, CHLIC and its subcontractors shall have no duty or obligation to represent Employer in any litigation or court proceeding involving any matter which is the subject of this Agreement, but shall make available to Employer and/or Employer's counsel such information relevant to such action or proceeding as CHLIC and its subcontractors may have as a result of its handling of any matter under this Agreement.
- D. In the event Employer purchases individual or aggregate stop loss coverage from CHLIC or an affiliate with respect to its self-funded employee welfare benefit plan at any time during the life of this Agreement, the provisions of paragraph II., below, shall control.

#### II. Plans with CHLIC Stop Loss Coverage

If Employer has purchased individual or aggregate stop loss coverage from CHLIC or an affiliate with respect to its self-funded employee welfare benefit plan:

- A. CHLIC and its subcontractors shall have the right and responsibility to manage all conditional claim payment and/or subrogation recoveries under the Plan. CHLIC and its subcontractors shall reimburse to the Plan the recovery minus relevant individual and aggregate stop loss payments made by CHLIC.
- B. All amounts reimbursed to Employer's Bank Account shall be refunded at the gross amount. CHLIC's and its subcontractors' subrogation administration fee on cases where CHLIC and its subcontractors' have retained counsel and in cases where no counsel has been retained by CHLIC and its subcontractors, are both reflected in the Schedule of Financial Charges.
- C. CHLIC and its subcontractors shall have no duty or obligation to represent Employer in any litigation or court proceeding involving any matter which is the subject of this Agreement but shall make available to Employer and/or Employer's counsel such information relevant to such action or proceeding as CHLIC and its subcontractors may have as a result of its handling of any matter under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, CHLIC and its subcontractors reserve to itself the right to retain counsel to represent CHLIC's own interests in any subrogation and/or conditional claim recovery action under the Plan.

### Exhibit F – California Transfer Addendum to ASO Agreement

The following provisions are applicable to that portion of the Plan that covers California Members under a managed care coverage option utilizing a provider network established by CIGNA HealthCare of California, Inc. or its affiliates ("CHC"), and the Agreement is hereby modified accordingly. These provisions are added for the purpose of ensuring compliance with California regulatory requirements which are applicable when the provider network includes capitated providers.

- 1. California Banking Arrangements
  - a. In addition to the Bank Account(s) required to be established under Section 3, a separate Citibank, N.A., program account (the "CHC Program Account") will be established by CHC for the purpose of funding all in-network benefits.
  - b. Employer shall, through a bank of its choice, periodically fund the CHC Program Account as described in the CHC Group Service Agreement ("GSA").
- 2. California Contracting Requirements
  - a. CHC shall issue to Employer a GSA. In-network services under the Plan for California Members shall be provided by CHC pursuant to this GSA.
- 3. Funding
  - a. In addition to any other charges payable by Employer to CHLIC for the performance of services under this Agreement, Employer shall pay to CHLIC any amounts funded by Employer through the CHC Program Account which CHC is required to return to Employer pursuant to the Return of Payments provision of the GSA. In recognition of its obligation to fund benefits under this Administrative Services Agreement, Employer authorizes and directs CHC to pay over any such amounts directly to CHLIC. Such amounts shall be held by CHLIC to be paid to CHC in the event CHC seeks to recover from Employer any prior years' Losses under the Loss Recovery provision of the GSA. In the event that the GSA terminates at a time when CHLIC is still holding amounts paid by CHC under the Return of Payments provision, such amounts shall be considered additional compensation owed to CHLIC for services provided pursuant to this Administrative Services Agreement.
  - b. From the amounts paid to CHLIC pursuant to the preceding subsection, CHLIC shall pay to CHC any amounts which Employer may be required to pay to CHC under the "Loss Recovery" provision of the GSA.
- 4. Stop Loss Coverage
  - a. All amounts funded by Employer through the CHC Program Account shall be considered as benefit payments under the Plan for purposes of any stop loss policy issued to the Employer by a CIGNA company with respect to the Plan, including amounts in excess of the Maximum Premium amount reflected in the GSA.

10/05/2011

### Exhibit G Request for Proposal

Place marker request to be added.

### 10/05/2011

	* ****	TER OF INFORMATION ON	and the second se	Advances of the second s		Q	τε (παιοαγγγγ) 227/2011
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER.	AND 1	HE CERTIFICATE LICE	UTE A CONTRAC	T BETWEEN	THE ISSUING INSURE	BY T R/SI	HE POLICIES
MPORTANT: If the certificate holds the terms and conditions of the polic certificate holder in lieu of such endo	- 1 A - 4	A PEAR INTERNATION OF A PARTY OF	Martin and the second state of the second state of				
certificate holder in lies of such endo	15604	ent(s).	envorsement. A i	litificient on	this certificate does not	00716	rights to the
MARSH USA Inc		a a construction of the second se	CORTACT		the sector of th		Million and a contract of the
TWO LOGAN SOUARE			PHONE	1.117 State of Sector 200	FAX		
Philaceletik, pa 19:03 And Herstein Accounteess@mainh.com	-		E MAIL		LAC.N	£	<u></u>
	FAX: 21	2 945-1307	AODAEDS;				
10607-01544-CAS-11-12			NE I	THICAN INSURANCE	PADING COVERAGE		HAIC
OGNA CORPORATION AND IT'S SUBSIDIA	Čar o		Lien				21927
INVOLUMENTY PLACE TLIGH	ruca:		MERCHER B . NOA	the loss on the burge	4 m - 1/		MA .
1601 CHESTAUT STREET Fre Adelphia, på trispære					NUMBER OF		43575
CONTRACTOR FOR SECTION			SHELINER D :				1
2 7 11/00 - 1/2011 - 1/2011 - 1/20							ļ
OVEHAGES CE	TIR	ATE NUMBER:	SUBERF:			<u> </u>	1
1845 IS TO CERTIEY THAT THE ONLY ON	a inte	the second s	CLE-003504204-0		REVISION NUMBER:	1	
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH						ihe po Ect to Iq all	UCY PERIOD WHICH THIS THE TERMS
R TYPE OF INSURANCE	ADDL	SUBA:		A REAL PROPERTY OF THE PARTY OF	3. T		
DEHERAL LINGLITY		HDO G253025-3	POLICE EFF		LITA	15	
X COMMERCIAL DENERTAL LUBILITY			(60000011	07/01/2012	CASH OCCUPTIENCE CASHAGE TO HENTED PREMISES EN OSCUPTIONS	5	1,030,
CLAMES-MADE X ODDUR			1		PREMISES EL CONTINUCAL	5	1,000,
			Ì		MED EXP (Any one person)	\$	5,
			1		PERSONAL & ADVINJURY	5	1,000,
GENL MOGRECATE UNIT APPLIES FER			1		GENERAL ADDIEGATE	5	2,000/
X POLICY RET LOC				ľ	PRODUCTS-CONFICE AGG	5	1,000,1
AUTOMOSILE LIABELITY	† †	ISA H28635724	I I DRO I DRO I A	F		5	
X MAY AUTO			121012011	0710122012	COMMENED SPACE LEMIT IEA ADTORNE	ž.	1,000,0
AL DAMED SCHEDULED					BOCHLY IN LARY (For parison)	ż	
NON-OWNED					DODE Y WART (Per societ)	ş	
Autos		<b>!</b>			IPH ACCOUNT	\$	
LIMBRELLA LIAR COOLA	┝╌┽					\$	
EXCESSION CLARGE MADE			a de		EACH OCCURRENCE	5	
		****	1		AGGREGATE	Ŧ	
WORKERS COMPENSATION		WAR CHEARING A (ACIS)	······			\$	
AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY		SCF CAFAE 118-1 (MA)	07801/2011	67/01/2012	X WO STATUL OTH. TORY UNITS FA		
OF CERMENDER EXCLORACION N	H/A		0770102011	02:01/2012	E.L. EACH ADOLDENT	\$	1,000,0
d'yes, durable ustar DESCRIFTION OF OFERASIONS DEEN		WLR 04648114-8 (CA & MA) WLR 04648113-8 (MA)	11.01.2011	07/01/2012	EL DOFASE - EA EMPLOYES		1,000,0
EXCESS		huru souders bill	07/01/2011	07/01/2012	EL DELASE- POLICY UNIT	5	1.000,0
				1	LIMIT		\$1,000,12
NUTRICERS (XINFENSATION		WC2 C4648113-3 (OH only)	01.01.2011	3	SIR		\$1,000.0
CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VENICL I REACH COUNTY ECHAPIC OF COUNTY COAMISSING RANY ENGERING INGURANCE AND LIMITED TO LIMI	AERS !	SINCLEDED AS ADDITIONAL INSUPER	DAS RESPECTS GENER		is nsurance is prodary an	C NCH4C	
RANY ENGENIS INSLRANCE AND LIMITED TO LAN KOGATION IS APPLICABLE WHERE REQUIRED BY	NUTY A	4 CCATRACI NO ALLONED BY LAW		And Where Rec	25 hours of the second se	D NON-C	ontroputor ER of
	*		CANCELLATION				
PALM BEACH COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS CHO PURCHASING DEPARTMENT ATTN: CONNE BAKER SIS SMULTARY TRAIL, SUITE 110			SHOULD ANY OF THE EXPIRATION ACCORDANCE WI	N DATE THE	scribed policies be ca reof, notice will b ( provisions,	NCELL E DEL	ed Bepore Ivered in
W. PALM BEACH, FL. 13415			Authorited Represe of March USA Inc.	HTATIYE			
			Donna Clampici	(	Down Change	Q	

http://poc.co.paim-beach.fl.us/certweb/Temp/Ce	rt certguest.ipg?Time = $10/6/2011 4.25.5$	10/6/2011

.-

 $uue = 10/0/2011 4:25:5... \quad 10/6/2011$ 

BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INS	nvel.¥ iuran	ce d	NEGATIVELY AMEND	EXTEN	D OR ALTER	r the cov	PON THE CERTIFICAT ERACE AFFORDED R IE ISSUING INSURER(	t ine ma	ստես լ
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, / MPORTANT: If the certificatic belder the learns and conditions of the policy	-	ADD	DONAL INSURED, IN	policy(i	es) must be	endorsed, K	SUBROGATION IS W	AIVED, sub	ect to to the
ne terms and conditions of the policy pertificate holder in lieu of such endo			nciae mint radmaa an e	P131262134913	1963 IV. v. a fandi	alamist Area State			
TAKEN				CONTACT NUME: FROME					
RISK Services Contral, Inc.				PHONE CARE	Par (666) >	17-7122	FAX (B4T)	953-5393	
iladelphix PA Office e Liberty Pisce				E-MAL ADCRES		<u>.</u>			
50 Market Street ite 1003							Carlo Carlo Bi OE		
iladelogia PA 19103 USA							DING COMERADE	1	
				* HAMPER		gloth Insur-	влсе Сопрату	1947	\$7
QNA Corporation Et Al QI Chesthul Street				HOURGE		······································			
o Liberty Place iladelphia PA 19192 USA				ANSLINE R	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
I HOUSE THE TA ATLAL UNA				INILIGEN					
				DELIRER	71-10 DOL.				
WERAGES CE			NUMBER: 570041948	BHELRE	F:	DE	VISION NUMBER:		
THE IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICE NOICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY P CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUIC		EMEN AN T	IT, TERM OR CONDITION	ded by 1	HE POLICIES	DESCRIBE	HEREIN IS SUBJECT		TERMS,
A TYPE OF INSUMANCE	ASH	SUBA	POLICY HUMBER		POLC Y LEFT	POLICY EX	100.1	<u>بر</u> ا	
GENERAL LINDUTT					15.1.1941.1.1.1.1		EACH OCCURRENCE	L	
COMMERCIA, CENERAL LIABLITY							MANAL TO ABUTED		
COMMENCIAL CRIMENCIAL DATION	1	1 1					HED EXP (Any one person)	1	
CLANSINGE OCOUR	1	1						4	
<u>+</u> 1							PERSONAL & ADV NUMPY		
	-						FERSIONAL & ATA INCURY	 	
<u>i</u>							PERSIGNAL & ATH INLIGY GENERAL ADGREDATE PRODUCTS / CONFICT AGE		
	······································						FERSIONAL & ATA INCURY		
CLARGE ANDE OCOUR							PERSONAL & ATX NURY GENERAL AGGREGATE PRODUCTS - CONFYC® AGG CONFINED SHOLE LAND		
CLARGE ANDE OCCUTA							PERSONAL & ADV NULRY CONERAL ADDREDATE PRODUCTS · COMPACE ACC COMPANED SHADLE LAND IS MICHTON BECKLY HIGHTY Per Judgeroff BOCKLY HIGHTY Per Judgeroff BOCKLY HIGHTY Per Judgeroff		
CLARE ANDE OCOUR CENT ADGREDATE LANT ANTLES FIRE MOLEY PRO- ANTONOBRE LANDIGT ANTONOBRE LANDIGT ANTONOBRE LANDIGT ANTON ANTON ANTON ANTON NOTONOBRE ANTON NOTONOBRE ANTON NOTONO NOTONOBRE ANTON NOTONO NOTONOBRE ANTON NOTONO NOTON NOTONO NOTON NOTONO NOTONO NOTONO NOTON NOTONO NOTONO NOTONO NOTONO NOTONO NOTONO NOTON NOTONO							PERSONAL & ATV NULRY IGNERAL ASCREDUTE PRODUCTS - COMMON ACC COMPINED SHIGLE LANT ISD MONTO STOLY HOLRY   Phil person?		
CLARE ANDE OCOUR CENT ADGRESATE LANT ANTLES PRE POLICY PET LOG AUTOMORE, LANGUITY ANT ANTO ALL OWNED AUTOS NUTUS NUTUS NUTUS NUTUS							PERSONAL & ATV NULRY IGHERAL ASCREDUTE PRODUCTS - CONFACE ACC CONDINED SHOLE LANT ISD EXAMIC SCOLY HULRY (Per Accession) PROFENTY DAVAUT (Per account)		
CLARCELA LINE OCCUR							PERSONAL & ADV NUCRY TODERAL AGGREGATE PRODUCTS - CONFICE AGG CONGINED SHALLE LANT IS BUGING HULRY I PH person BUCILY NUCRY I PH person BUCILY NUCRY I PH person BUCILY NUCRY I PH PERSON		
CLANCEMARE OCOUR CENT ADGREGATE LANT ATTLES PAR POLICY JELT LOG ANTONOBLE LANGURTY ANT ANTO ALL OWNED REPAILED ANTOS NATOS NATOS NATOS NATOS CONTELLA LINE OCCUR FROMELLA LINE OCCUR							PERSONAL & ATV NULRY IGNERAL ASCREDUTE PRODUCTS - COMPACE ARC COMPARED SINGLE LAND ISD REGIST STOLY HOURY ( Per Archen) PROPERTY DWANT (Per archent) EAGE OCGUPPENCE		
CLARES ANDE OCOUR SEMILADORESATE LANT ATTLES PRR MOLEY PRO- MOLEY PRO- MOLEY PRO- MITORONE, LANGLETT ANT ANDO ALL OWNED SCHEDULED ANTOS NOTO							PERSONAL & ATV NULRY IGNERAL ASCREDUTE PRODUCTS - CONFACE ACC CONPARED SINGLE LANT ISS MONTO STOLY NULRY (Per Accession) PROPERTY DAVAUT (Per accession) EAGE OCCUPPEDICE AGGREDATE		
CLARES ANDE OCCUR							PERSONAL & ATV NULRY IGNERAL ASCREDUTE PRODUCTS - COMPACE ARC COMPARED SINGLE LAND ISD REGIST STOLY HOURY ( Per Archen) PROPERTY DWANT (Per archent) EAGE OCGUPPENCE		
CLARES ANDE OCOUR CLARES ANDE OCOUR CENT ADDRESATE LANT ATTRES PRE MOLEY PET LOG ANTONOTIC LARENTY ANY ANTO ALL OWNED SCHEDULED ANTOS NITES NOTE: NITES NOTE: PREDATOS LINE CLAMENTO DES RETENTION WORKERS COMPENDATION AND EMPLOYERS LARENTY ANY PROMIETS CLARENTY ANY PROMIETS CLARENTY ANY PROMIETS CLARENTY ANY PROMIETS CLARENTY ANY PROMIETS CLARENTY ANY PROMIETS LINE							PERSONAL & ATV NULRY IGNERAL ASCREDUTE PRODUCTS - COMPAGE LAND ISD MIDDLE SHOLE ASCREDUTE PROPERTY DAVALUE PROPERTY DAVALUE CAN ACCOUPTENCE AGGREGATE MICH STATUL ETA		
CLARE ANDE OCCUR							PERSONAL & ATV NULRY GENERAL ASCREDATE PRODUCTE · COMPACE ACC COMPARED SHOLE LAND ELEMATIC		
CLARES ANDE OCOUR CLARES ANDE OCOUR CENT ADDRESATE LANT ATTRES PRE MOLEY PET LOG ANTONOTIC LARENTY ANY ANTO ALL OWNED SCHEDULED ANTOS NITES NOTE: NITES NOTE: PREDATOS LINE CLAMENTO DES RETENTION WORKERS COMPENDATION AND EMPLOYERS LARENTY ANY PROMIETS CLARENTY ANY PROMIETS CLARENTY ANY PROMIETS CLARENTY ANY PROMIETS CLARENTY ANY PROMIETS CLARENTY ANY PROMIETS LINE			10576+61		05/36/2011	03/34/2012	PERSONAL & ATX NULRY EDERAL ASCREDUTE PROCUTE, COMPACE ACC PROCUTE, COMPACE ACC FOND NED SHOLE LAIR ISD EXCIT, NULRY PAR ACC EDER HALRY I PAR ACC IST IN NULRY PAR ACC PROFERING EACH COUPPENCE ACCPEGATE INC. STATUL INC. STATUL	4	

Ş